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Financial Highlights for 2nd Fiscal Period
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Portfolio Size

8 properties

Total Assets Under Management

161.4 bn yen

Occupancy Rate

97.8%

Tokyo Area Concentration

100.0%

Total Debt

58.97 bn yen

Loan to Value (“LTV”) Ratio

34.3%

Operating Revenues

4,853 mn yen

Operating Income

2,956 mn yen

Net Income

2,739 mn yen

Distributions Per Unit (“DPU”)

2,650 yen

Earnings Per Unit (“EPU”)

2,491yen

DPU in Excess of Earnings 

159 yen

Executive Director Message   2
Experts Committed to Logistics Paying Off     4
A Day at LOGIPORT Sagamihara     8
On-Site with President Fujiwara     10
External Growth Strategy   12
Internal Growth Strategy   14
Commitment to Sustainability   17
Portfolio Summary   18
Overview of Portfolio   20
Financial Strategy   26
Distribution Strategy   27
About LaSalle Inc.   28
LaSalle Group’s Professional Support  
Contributes to Greater Unitholder Value   30

Operation and Governance Emphasizing  
Unitholders’ Interests and Transparency   32
Decision Making Flowchart for  
Related Party Transactions   33
Risk Factors   34
Financial Section 
Balance Sheets   36
Statements of Income   37
Statements of Changes in Net Assets   38
Statements of Cash Flows   39
Notes to Financial Statements   40
Independent Auditor’s Report   54
Investor Information   55

Table of Contents

1



Toshimitsu Fujiwara
Executive Director

LaSalle LOGIPORT REIT 

Thank you for your continued support 
of LaSalle LOGIPORT REIT (“LLR”). 
As the Executive Director of LLR, I am 
proud to report strong results for the 
2nd fiscal period.

When observing the transactions 
market for fully stabilized prime lo-
gistics properties, relative to where 
the market was during our IPO, cap 
rates have tightened by 50bps from a 
mid-4% cap rate range to a 4% flat cap 
rate environment, where properties re-
cently have been changing hands at 
steep prices.  Whenever a stabilized 
property comes to market, there is ex-
uberant interest for such an asset as 
a “wall of capital” from both domestic 
and international sources continue to 

chase logistics products.  The invest-
ment thesis of modern logistics, that 
still only comprise a modest 4% of all 
of Japan’s entire warehouse stock, 
has proven to be a proposition that 
many investors just cannot pass up.  
On the supply and demand of space, 
there is a continued supply of new lo-
gistics development which in Tokyo 
has been met with solid demand that 
has surprised many market partici-
pants to the upside.  The underlying 
needs for many third-party logistics 
(“3PL”) and various drugstore/conve-
nience store chains that look to aggre-
gate their space and operations into 
larger modern warehouse continue 
with　burgeoning growth.  Moreover, 
consumer oriented businesses that 
are connected to e-commerce also 
continue on an upward path.  In the 
midst of this space demand and capital 
flow, the Bank of Japan reiterated 
its stance that it intends to maintain 
negative rates on short-term bonds 
and a 10-year JGB rate of near 0%, 
citing how the Japanese economy 
remains weak and far from its 2% in-
flation target. The “jury is still out” as 
to whether it can maintain these yield 
curve control measures in the face of 
the likelihood that the U.S. Federal 
Reserve will raise interest rates over 
the next several quarters.  That said, 
with U.S. interest rates rising, it would 
likely weaken the Japanese yen, which 
would continue to provide support for 
the domestic equity markets.  These 
mixed signals remind real estate in-
vestors to keep an eye on the long-
term, to watch the capital flows, but 
not to over-react to the day to day 
gyrations.  When considering this 
type of market environment, and when 
thinking through the mid to long term 
perspective, LLR does not believe that 
now is an appropriate time to put “the 
foot on the accelerator” and speed up 

on acquisitions.  Rather than chasing 
assets at ever higher prices, LLR be-
lieves that now is the time to adhere to 
carefully selecting investments, paying 
only disciplined fair prices relative to 
each asset’s location and quality.  In 
addition, in light of the interest rate 
environment now would be a prudent 
time to lengthen debt terms, raise fixed 
rate debt (as opposed to floating rate 
debt), and manage the balance sheet 
with a steady hand on the tiller.

With this global capital market and 
macro-economic backdrop in mind, 
the 2nd fiscal period continued to 
demonstrate how LLR’s proactive 
approach was fruitful in maximizing in-
vestors’ unitholder value.  On February 
15 2017, LLR issued 6 billion yen in 
two tranches of investment corporation 
bonds to extend its weighted average 
debt maturity, which also enabled 
LLR to diversify its financing sources 
at very favorable interest rates.  The 
bonds are unsecured and backed by 
the AA- (stable) credit rating obtained 
from the Japan Credit Rating agency.  
The bonds were issued due in part to 
the changing interest rate environment 
where the outlook has grown more 
hawkish from lenders.

LLR also entered into a contract to 
acquire the LOGIPORT Kawagoe 
asset located in Saitama Prefecture 
– a part of the Tokyo Metropolitan Area 
– and acquired the property on March 
1, 2017 (i.e. the beginning of the 3rd 
fiscal period). The property is LLR’s 
first addition to the portfolio and was 
acquired for 11.95 billion yen at an ap-
praisal cap rate of 4.9%. The property 
was acquired with 100% occupancy.

LLR continues to adhere to its in-
vestment policy and business plan 
of investing in prime logistics facili-
ties in areas well suited for logistics 

LaSalle REIT Advisors K.K.

The LaSalle Group and LRA have assembled strong leadership teams 
with local and global real estate management and business development 
expertise.  These teams ensure the continuous success of LLR.

Global and Local Leadership and  
Experience to Deliver

Toshimitsu has more than 16 years 
of real estate experience in Japan 
and the U.S. He joined LaSalle K.K. 
in 2009 and has overseen fund and 
asset management for the Japan 
Logistics Fund series. Previously 
he worked at MGPA Japan LLC, the 
predecessor of Black Rock Japan 
Co., Ltd., and the U.S. real estate 
investment arm of Nippon Life In-
surance Company.

Toshimitsu  
Fujiwara
Global and Local 
Expertise
President and CEO

Daisuke has more than 12 years of 
experience in the real estate and 
finance industries. Daisuke joined 
LaSalle K.K. in 2010 where he ini-
tially devoted time to acquisition ac-
tivities for the LaSalle Japan Logis-
tics II and III funds. Prior to joining 
LaSalle K.K., Daisuke worked as a 
financial advisor in various trans-
actions at KPMG FAS Co., Ltd. 
including non-performing loan in-
vestments and M&A activities.

Daisuke  
Ishida 
Local Expertise
Chief Financial Officer

Yasuo joined LaSalle K.K. in 2002 
and has since grown the business 
in Japan to approximately US$5 
billion of assets under manage-
ment. Yasuo was key to launching 
and providing guidance with respect 
to the Japan Logistics Fund series. 
Yasuo has more than 20 years of 
experience in real estate globally 
and locally, having co-founded a 
public-private partnership (PPP) 
developer in New York and also 
spent many years in residential 
development in Japan.

Yasuo Nakashima 
Global and Local Expertise
Chief Executive Officer
Japan

Mark joined LaSalle Inc. as Chief 
Investment Officer in 2010 with 23 
years of real estate experience, 
of which 18 is in the Asia Pacific 
region. He has completed over 
US$10 billion of entity level, debt 
and equity real estate investments 
with 65% of those in Japan. Mark 
was Co-Head of the Global Real 
Estate Group, Asia Pacific at 
Lehman Brothers in Tokyo and later 
Managing Director of the Nomura 
Asia Asset Finance Division.

Mark Gabbay 
Global and Local Expertise
Chief Executive Officer/ 
Chief Investment Officer
Asia Pacific

LaSalle Investment Management

with global and local support from 
LaSalle Investment Management Inc. 
(“LaSalle Inc.” or “LaSalle Global”) 
along with its various subsidiaries 
including LaSalle Investment Man-
agement K.K. (“LaSalle K.K.” or 
“Sponsor”) and LLR’s asset man-
agement arm, LaSalle REIT Advisors 
K.K. (“LRA” or the “Asset Manager”), 
which collectively make up LLR’s 
extensive network (the “LaSalle 
Group”).  LLR is proud to operate with 
transparent and clear governance at a 
level that exceeds requirements. It is 
essential that LLR continue with this 
strategy while continuing to commit 
skilled professionals to deliver on 
promises.

Finally, during this period LLR also 
delivered on its dividend distribu-
tions to investors.  The initial guid-
ance provided for distribution per unit 
(“DPU”) projected a 2,545 yen per 
unit distribution.  In actuality, as of 
the end of the 2nd fiscal period, LLR 
produced a DPU of 2,650 yen per unit, 
a 105 yen upward revision.  This has 
been achieved through proactive yet 
prudent asset management, resulting 
in better than expected property level 
occupancy levels (averaging 97.5% 
during the 2nd fiscal period, 97.8% at 
the end of February 2017) as well as 
rent per tsubo increases, and greater 
than expected reductions in utilities 
costs. 

LLR is convinced that it will continue 
to deliver in the 3rd fiscal period with 
the addition of LOGIPORT Kawagoe 
flowing through the income statement 
coupled with modest internal growth 
of the LLR portfolio.

Thank you for your continued support 
of LLR’s mandate.

Executive 
Director 
Message
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Q1
What is the present market 
environment?

Unlike the past several years, the en-
vironment for J-REITs to be acquisi-
tive in a manner that is accretive has 
diminished, and DPU growth rates are 
expected to be in the range of 2-3% for 
the upcoming year.  However, given 
how LLR’s total asset size, and thus 
denominator, is relatively small when 
compared to its immediate compet-
itors, coupled with the fact that it is 
currently operating at a modest 34.3% 
loan to value (“LTV”) level with ample 
debt capacity to avail itself toward ex-
ternal growth acquisitions, LLR  is well 
positioned to grow DPU at or above 
5% for the next several years.  More-
over, given how several J-REITs have 
underwhelmed investors partly due to 
the expensive prices paid for assets, 
and with international investors being 
turned off by REITs in general in light 
of the prospect of rising interest rates, 
LLR’s stable and wider dividend yield 
retains a strong appeal.  While there 
was some concern over the supply 
and demand dynamics falling out of 
balance, the continued strength in 
demand keeping pace with the sig-
nificant growth in supply has proved a 

bright spot in modern logistics funda-
mentals.  Overall the market remains 
favorable for logistics facilities pushed 
by modernization of facilities, e-com-
merce and third-party logistics.

Q2
How do you assess the per-
formance of LLR in the 2nd 
fiscal period?

LLR’s performance was strong during 
the 2nd fiscal period.  The average 
portfolio level occupancy was 97.5% 
and the portfolio level occupancy at 
the end of the fiscal period was 97.8%.  
The primary drivers for the increase 
were LOGIPORT Hashimoto’s occu-
pancy increasing from 92.1% to 95.2% 
as well as LOGIPORT Sagamihara’s 
occupancy increasing from 97.9% to 
99.6%.  Additionally, the portfolio rent 
per tsubo level increased by 4 yen 
from 3,531 to 3,535 yen per tsubo.

Q3
Can you tell us about LOGI-
PORT Kawagoe, which was 
acquired on the first day of 
the 3rd fiscal period?

The acquisition of LOGIPORT 
Kawagoe is the first property LLR has 
acquired since its IPO.  It is a prime 
logistics facility that is six years old 
and located near the Route 16 arterial 

highway.  Excellent building specifica-
tions and a good location, coupled with 
the deal dynamics of the transaction, 
made the investment appealing and 
appropriate for LLR.  When this deal 
materialized, the property was 85% 
occupied, and was facing a reduction 
in its occupancy level to 50% in the 
near future.  The uncertainty around 
the re-leasing efforts with regard to 
the remaining space enabled LRA and 
its sponsor, LaSalle K.K., to excel.  
Coming up with an asset and leasing 
management plan to reorganize the 
imminently vacant space such that it 
would be contiguous, coupled with 
support from the Sponsor during this 
re-leasing risk period by becoming the 
asset manager to a bridge SPC struc-
ture (shielding LLR from any leasing 
risk exposure), enabled LaSalle K.K. 
to acquire the property at a discount 
relative to market.  Once the asset 
was acquired by the bridge SPC, LRA 
entered into an agreement where it at-
tained preferential negotiating rights to 
acquire the asset at a pre-agreed price 
(i.e. a call option was attained), if and 
when the property achieves stabiliza-
tion.  Although the re-leasing efforts 

were initially underwritten to take nine 
months, in actuality the space was 
re-leased back up within two weeks of 
the bridge SPC acquiring the property.  
Since stabilization was achieved, LLR 
then lined up its financing sources, 
as the original business plan entailed 
acquiring this asset completely with 
the use of debt proceeds.  Once the 
financing was lined up through a 
combination of investment corpora-
tion bonds and a syndicate loan, LLR 
exercised its call option and acquired 
LOGIPORT Kawagoe at a price that 
was a relative discount to a “priced 
to perfection” stabilized property that 
would be brought to market.  The 
passing on of the leasing risk issues 
onto the bridge SPC vehicle, coupled 
with the leveraging off of the Sponsor’s 
leasing prowess, demonstrated the 
creative thinking required in today’s 
highly competitive market for prime 
logistics facilities.  With the acquisition 
of the Kawagoe asset, LLR projects 
its stabilized DPU to grow from 2,202 
yen per unit to 2,362 yen per unit, 
representing a 7.3% increase.

Q4
What is the outlook on ex-
ternal growth going forward?

It cannot be refuted that the market is 
hot and that the number of investors, 
developers, and new entrants acquir-
ing or hoping to acquire logistics have 
increased over the last several years.  
In light of how the underlying funda-
mentals to modern logistics remain 
sound, LLR can understand why there 
is a “wall of capital” chasing this asset 
type.  In this context, being acquisitive 
and buying assets at a price that is in 
line with the LaSalle Group’s view of 
intrinsic value has proven challeng-
ing.  However, LLR’s external growth 
policy remains the same.  LLR is going 
to continue to focus on well located, 
prime products, and intends to acquire 
future assets that maintain the existing 
portfolio’s NOI yield.    

With a selective investment mentality 
in mind, LLR will aim to solidly expand 
its acquisition pipeline via three chan-
nels: the existing LaSalle Fund, the 
new LaSalle Fund, and third party 
external acquisitions.

LLR has set a target of growing assets 
under management to 300 billion yen 
by the year 2020.  With the acquisition 
of LOGIPORT Kawagoe, AUM stands 
at 173.4 billion yen, leaving an addi-
tional 126.6 billion yen to go.  LLR 
intends to achieve the remaining asset 
acquisition tasks via its three pipeline 
channels as follows: 

1.   Existing LaSalle Fund - eight prop-
erties currently under development, 
valued in excess of 100 billion yen.

2.   Third Party External Acquisitions 
- LLR has obtained exclusive pref-
erential negotiating rights on four 
properties in excess of 25 billion 
yen.

Experts Committed to 
Logistics Paying Off

From left to right;

Toshimitsu Fujiwara  
President and CEO

Toshikazu Urushibata 
Head of Asset Management

Daisuke Ishida 
Chief Financial Officer

Ryunosuke Konishi 
Acting Chief Investment Officer

LaSalle REIT Advisors K.K.
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Feb. 2016 (IPO) Mar. 2017 2020 thereafterBetween 2017~2020

+10.0%+7.3%

Experts Committed to 
Logistics Paying Off

3.   New LaSalle Fund - currently in its 
final documentation phase.  Cur-
rently two seed assets are under 
way whose aggregate estimated 
value exceeds 60 billion yen.

As can be seen, the total of the 
aforementioned channel amounts to 
around 185 billion yen which exceeds 
the total required to attain the stated 
300 billion yen AUM target.  Moreover, 
the manner in which LLR intends to 
execute its external acquisitions going 
forward is to continue buying via the 
use of debt proceeds, increasing the 
J-REIT’s LTV level to 45%, which 
implies that LLR still has 20 billion 
yen in debt capacity available to utilize 
toward external growth.  Moreover, if 
it executes on such an acquisitions 
path, DPU would be enhanced from 
the current stabilized DPU level of 
2,362 yen per unit to 2,600 yen per 
unit, representing a further 10% in-

crease, and it intends to do this by 
exercising the call options on the four 
aforementioned assets it has under 
its control via the third party external 
acquisitions channel. 

Q5
How does LLR distinguish 
itself from other REITs and 
illustrate its prowess?

First, given how the J-REIT market 
is projected to grow DPU on average 
in the range of 2-3%, while a rela-
tively new J-REIT like LLR can gen-
erate DPU growth of 5% or greater, 
it believes that such outperformance 
should be rewarded by investors.   

Secondly, given how LLR, LRA, 
LaSalle K.K., and the LaSalle Group’s 
skilled local and global teams have 
been involved in the development of 
logistics properties (particularly as it 
relates to the Japanese market) since 

its infancy, and have played a central 
role in transforming logistics distribu-
tion centers as an asset class that has 
matured into core real estate invest-
ment products, LLR possesses and 
has access to a team of experts who 
have the market knowledge and ex-
perience to weather market cycles as 
well as to price real estate according 
to their intrinsic value.  To reiterate, by 
teaming with LLR’s Sponsor, it has the 
means and ability to acquire steadily 
performing properties at the right price 
that result in accretive acquisitions for 
raising its DPU (as opposed to diluting 
investor value).

Thirdly, given how LLR’s portfolio is 
comprised of multi-tenanted facilities 
that require a fair amount of consis-
tent asset management and leasing 
prowess, maintaining relationships 

with 3PL providers as well as end 
tenants is imperative.  Although LLR 
owns nine properties when includ-
ing LOGIPORT Kawagoe, eight of 
which are multi-tenanted, the total 
roster of tenants is 99 different and 
unique counterparties.  From a space 
demand and leasing management 
perspective, there are merits to being 
diversified.  In multi-tenanted logistics 
facilities, there is flexibility to respond 
to small space needs such as one 
bay of 800 tsubo, as well as large 
scale space demand needs such 
as one floor of 10,000 tsubo.  In this 
manner, LLR’s portfolio of properties 
is able to accommodate operational 
aggregation, floor space expansion, 
dispersion of operations, as well as to 
scale back operations, thus keeping 
a given property’s competitiveness 
intact over time.

Q6
Has LLR’s financial strategy 
contributed to a strong port-
folio?

Yes and here is why.  As mentioned 
before, LLR has taken steps to con-
tinue to fortify its balance sheet by 
maintaining a long weighted average 
remaining term, by adding four banks 
to its bank formation (an increase from 
seven lenders to eleven lenders) and 
enhancing the sources from where it 
procures debt, issuing two series of 

5-year and 10-year investment corpo-
ration bonds and diversifying the types 
of debt obtained, increasing the fixed 
rate component to its debt from 81.0% 
to 87.7%, and lowering its overall debt 
costs from 0.62% to 0.59%, represent-
ing a 3bps cost saving.  Even with the 
acquisition of LOGIPORT Kawagoe 
via debt, the overall LTV increased 
to a modest 38.7%.  Thus this raising 
of leverage was not viewed as a risky 
move, and enabled the enhancement 
of DPU.

Going forward, LLR intends to contin-
ue to take advantage of the favorable 
financing environment, while keeping 
in mind how the prevailing talk around 
interest rate increases from global 
capital markets in other parts of the 
world turn more hawkish.  Moreover, 
even in the domestic lending market, 
lenders have become more wary of 
financing new entrants and certain 
deals because their trading prices 
were  so high.  LLR continues to have 
a flexible strategy based on multiple 
simulations that ensure an optimal mix 
of financing.

Q7
What is the sponsor support 
from the LaSalle Group?

Continuing from the 2nd fiscal period  
onto the 3rd fiscal period, guiding the 
acquisition of LOGIPORT Kawagoe 
was a perfect example of LLR’s 

Sponsor support.  To repeat several of 
the points raised in question three on  
page 4, LaSalle K.K. helped ware-
house a future acquisition – LOGI-
PORT Kawagoe - and secured tenants 
until the property was operating at a 
stabilized occupancy level. This reli-
able expertise combined with a signif-
icant pipeline of properties currently 
under development by LaSalle K.K. 
means that LLR has, at its disposal, 
a global property investment manager 
with strong sourcing, land develop-
ment, construction management, 
tenant sourcing, and tenant relation 
management teams both in Japan and 
around the world.

Q8
Finally, have you been able 
to maintain distributions for 
the 2nd fiscal period?  

Not only has LLR maintained its div-
idend distribution levels for the 2nd 
fiscal period, it made an actual upward 
revision relative to its initial guidance 
forecast.  So far, LLR’s guidance has 
been to forecast conservatively and  
it has outperformed in actual results.  
LLR intends to continue this trend 
going forward.

161.4 bn 
yen

2,202 
yen

2,362 
yen

2,600 
yen

2020
Asset size 

300 bn yen

173.4 bn 
yen

Continuous selective investment 
in prime logistics

Asset Size

Illustrative Stabilized DPU Simulation 

Proactive Yet Conservative Growth Target

Assuming LTV of 45%
(20 bn yen use of debt capacity for acquisition)
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Visiting Prime Logistics Facilities

A Day at LOGIPORT Sagamihara

Arrival

A truck loaded with products 
made in factories arrives at the 
logistics center and connects to 
its designated berth.  The driver 
unloads the cargo and stacks it 
in the designated spot.  At LO-
GIPORT Sagamihara there is 
a large ramp way which allows 
trucks to berth directly on the 
tenant’s floor, which makes the 
placement of cargo very efficient.  
The facility is also equipped with 
dock levelers so that containers 
can connect to vehicles.

After arriving, products are placed 
in a temporary storage area.  
When the products are inspected 
upon arrival, warehousing labels 
are issued on which information 
regarding the storage location 
is printed.  Since LOGIPORT 
Sagamihara has ample ceiling 
heights of 5.5m, large trucks that 
can load a substantial amount of 
products are parked in an orderly 
manner, thereby enabling smooth 
storage operations.  

The products are selected from 
the storage area based on the 
orders of clients and are then put 
into re-useable boxes such as 
shipping boxes and foldable con-
tainers.  The re-useable boxes 
in which the products are placed 
are then put onto a conveyor belt 
to be carried to the next stage of 
the process.  LOGIPORT Sag-
amihara enables flexible layouts 
and the picking process is also 
smooth since the column spans 
are 10m x 10m. 

Storage Picking

Taking a look at the work flow for a day of a tenant at LOGIPORT Sagamihara should 
give unitholders a detailed understanding of the features of LLR’s prime logistics facilities.

4 5 6
The products that have been 
picked are then sorted by ship-
ment unit.  This tenant sorts 
products by placing each indi-
vidual product onto an appropri-
ate conveyor belt by scanning 
the labels.  Mechanization is 
advanced as there are cases 
where the sorting process  uses 
robotic arms.  LOGIPORT Sag-
amihara is designed with ample 
power capacity in order to meet 
the automation needs of tenants.  

The main purpose of packaging 
operations is to prevent products 
from being soiled or damaged, 
but there is also the benefit of fa-
cilitating the handling of products.  
LOGIPORT Sagamihara has 
external walls with high thermal 
insulation performance and has 
various amenities for those who 
work in packaging operations, 
thereby ensuring a comfortable 
working environment. 

The cargo that has been sorted is 
then carried to the shipment area 
and separated according to desti-
nation by checking the barcodes.  
It is then loaded onto the trucks 
at the berths and the trucks set 
off toward their destinations.  The 
process is then complete.  LOGI-
PORT Sagamihara is equipped 
with truck berths that align the 
height with the floor of the ware-
house, facilitating efficient loading 
and unloading.  

Sorting Packaging
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Operations that Take Place at Logistics Facilities
Various processes take place at logistics facilities from the arrival to departure of cargo to be 
delivered to shops and homes by trucks.  



Visiting Prime Logistics Facilities

On-Site with President Fujiwara

Large Scale
Prime logistics facilities are defined as those with a gross 
floor area (“GFA”) of at least 16,500m2 (approximately 
5,000 tsubo). A major benefit of logistics facilities with 
large GFA is that they can provide opportunities for 
effective logistics operations through the aggregation 
and integration of logistics functions, which are expected 
to grow in demand going forward. 

200,045m2GFA of LOGIPORT Sagamihara

The Asset Manager’s President and CEO Toshimitsu  
Fujiwara will give an in-depth tour of prime logistics  
facilities in which the investment of LLR is focused. 

Let me introduce LOGIPORT Sagamihara 

Exclusive Area
This is the tenant’s exclusive area. The ceiling height is 
an ample 5.5m, the floor loading capacity is 1.5 tons/m2  
and the column spacing is a minimum of 10m x 10m 
so tenants can flexibly arrange the layout according to 
their needs. 

I am 189cm tall but you can see how large the space is 
in comparison.  

Celling height

5.5m
Column spans
10m x 10m

Floor loading capacity

1.5 tons/m2

The following are the four key characteristics of locations suitable 
for logistics facilities as conceived by LLR.  This property satisfies 
all of these requirements.

1  Excellent access to areas of high consumption  
(densely populated areas)

2  Close proximity to main arterial highways, expressways, 
and interchanges

3  Zoning for industrial usage, allowing 24-hour logistics 
operations

4  Easy access for pedestrians from public transportation, 
aiding in attracting and retaining employees

Suitable Logistics Location

There is a vast residential area near the property 
as well as a shuttle bus from the nearest train 
station.  As such, the employment environment 
is excellent. 

In addition, amenities such as a cafeteria, shops, 
and shower rooms are among the services offered 
on-site to ensure the comfort of the workers. 

Ramp Way

This is the ramp way that the trucks use to carry cargo 
directly to the upper floors. All of LLR’s properties are 
equipped with large ramp ways or vertical conveyors 
with sufficient carrying capacities.  These contribute 
significantly to the tenants’ logistics efficiency.

Disaster Risk

The seismic isolation device can be seen through this 
window.  This reduces any shaking to one third or a 
quarter.

The ground and geological features of Sagamihara makes 
the area resistant to natural disasters. Together with its 
emergency power generator, stockpile of water, food, 
clothing, etc., this warehouse considers the business 
continuity planning (“BCP”) of tenants and has a low 
risk of disasters.

Employment Environment

Number of workers at  
LOGIPORT Sagamihara Approx. 2,000

National Route 16

LOGIPORT Hashimoto

Hashimoto Station

*Photo of LOGIPORT Hashimoto
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Robust Sponsor Assists in Delivering Prudent Growth

Financial Projections for 3rd Fiscal Period (March 1, 2017 - August 31, 2017)

Independent Acquisition Sourcing by the Asset Manager 
The Asset Manager, LRA, may independently participate in open bids or off market transactions. Separate from the 
aforementioned information that may be received from the LaSalle Group, LLR will capitalize upon the Asset Manager’s 
own independent expertise and information network in order to generate deal flow and acquire attractive properties 
in order to support its continued growth.

The LaSalle Group intends to realize and support LLR’s external growth by clearly distinguishing its investment target 
separate from that of the Sponsor’s private real estate funds business (“Sponsor Funds”).  Specifically, LLR will seek 
to invest in “core assets” implying stabilized occupancy rates (“core assets” are referring to properties with relatively 
small cash flow fluctuations and from which stable revenues may be expected over the medium to long term).  After the 
full disposition of the Existing LaSalle Fund, LaSalle K.K. considers LLR to be its sole fund for potential acquisitions of 
logistics related core assets in Japan.  In contrast, Sponsor Funds will pursue opportunistic investments with a focus 
on higher expected capital returns from risk-taking via property development or lease up risk.

LLR believes that the pipeline support provided by the LaSalle Group, including the warehousing functions via the 
bridge fund vehicles, will enable it to selectively acquire stabilized properties that have achieved high occupancy rates.  

Acquisition Support Provided by LaSalle K.K.
• Sourcing via LaSalle K.K.: Pursuant to the sponsor support agreement, provided that the Sponsor deems it 

appropriate, the Sponsor will provide the Asset Manager with information on the sale of certain logistics prop-
erties in Japan that are owned or managed by the Sponsor funds.

• Properties owned or managed by third parties: Provided that it is deemed appropriate by the Sponsor, the 
Sponsor has also agreed to provide the Asset Manager with information regarding the sale of certain logistics 
properties in Japan that are owned or managed by third parties. 

• Acquisitions utilizing bridge fund vehicles: When LLR is not able to acquire a property directly from a 
third party (due to various factors), LLR may request for the Sponsor to arrange bridge funds for purposes of 
warehousing a property with a view to selling such property to LLR at a later time.

Note: All of the figures above are projections which incorporate the acquisition of LOGIPORT Kawagoe on March 1, 2017, the beginning of the 3rd fiscal period. 

Portfolio Size

9 properties

Total Assets Under Management

173.4 bn yen

Occupancy Rate

97.8%

Tokyo Area Concentration  

100.0%

Total Debt

71.07 bn yen

LTV Ratio 

38.7%

Operating Revenues

5,191 mn yen

Operating Income

2,698 mn yen

Net Income  

2,392 mn yen

DPU

2,345 yen

EPU

2,174 yen

DPU in Excess of Earnings 

171 yen

LOGIPORT Kawagoe is six years old having been completed in 2011. It 
has more than 15,000 tsubo (49,586m2) of floor space, with each floor at 
least 5,000 tsubo (16,500m2). 

The building also boasts high functionality with: 1) effective ceiling heights 
of approximately 5.5m-7.0m, floor loading capacity of at least 1.5 tons/m2 

and column spans of approximately 11.3m x 9.7m; 2) freight elevators with 
a loading capacity of 3.5 tons and vertical conveyors throughout (further 
increase is possible); 3) truck berths on either side that enable the facility to 
be divided among four tenants if necessary; 4) excellent rainy day handling 
with 8m eaves and 13m columns; and 5) ample air-conditioned office space.

LOGIPORT KawagoeTokyo-9

LLR’s 2nd fiscal period portfolio was comprised of eight assets all within the greater Tokyo metropolitan area.  During 
the fiscal period, LRA obtained preferential negotiating rights to acquire the LOGIPORT Kawagoe asset, another 
property located in the greater Tokyo metropolitan area, and it executed this acquisition on March 1, 2017, the first 
day of the 3rd fiscal period.

LOGIPORT Kawagoe was acquired in the form of a trust beneficiary interest and is described on page 25. It was 
acquired for several reasons, including excellent access to expressways, with distribution routes across the Tokyo 
metropolitan area.  The site is zoned for industrial use, which allows for 24-hour operations.  There is excellent access 
for employees from public transportation with over 100 round trip bus routes each weekday to and from Kawagoe 
and Ageo train stations. 

External Growth Strategy
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LP Hashimoto/Sagamihara  LP Kitakashiwa/LP Nagareyama (A) & (B) LP KawagoeLP Higashi Ogishima  (A), (B) & (C)

1.5%

12.8%

1.5%

2.2%

7.1%

1.0%

2.0% 1.9%
1.6% 1.3% 0.7%

1.2%

4.5%

3.9%

2.8%

1.9%

11.4%

3.4%

6.4%

5.5%

3.7%3.7%
17.3%17.3%

6.3%

1.8%

11.8%11.8%

1.6%1.6%

During the next eight fiscal periods, LP Higashi Ogishima has 292,000m2,  LP Kitakashiwa and LP Nagareyama (A) and (B) have 177,000m2, 
and LP Hashimoto, LP Sagamihara and LP Kawagoe buildings have 110,000m2 of lease maturities.    

As of February 28, 2017

Note: Figures expressed above are accounting for a percentage of annual rent.

Standard Lease 
63%

Fixed Term Lease 
37%

New Lease 
15%

Auto Renewal 
62%

Renewal 
21%

Same Rent Level 
62%

Increase 
8%

Same
22%

Reduction 
6%

Reduction Reduction 

Vacancy

2%2%

2%2%

Lease Renewal Status for 2nd Fiscal Period

(Note) The percentages shown above are accounting for the roughly 119,000m2 of lease maturities during the 2nd fiscal period. (Temporary usage is not 
accounted for, and only the warehouse/storage use areas are considered.)

Active Asset Management to Drive Rental Growth over Time
LLR is committed to maintaining and improving the quality of its revenues by leveraging the LaSalle Group’s “active 
asset management” expertise provided through the sponsor support agreement.

While logistics is facing a period of significant supply, LLR’s goal is to continue to maintain high occupancy levels.  
When speaking of significant supply, investors wonder whether that will translate into lowered rents or downside risks 
to cash flow.  However, LLR’s portfolio is very defensively positioned.  LLR’s in-place portfolio level rent is 3,523 yen 
per tsubo.  Relative to this, sustainable market level rents are 3,700 yen per tsubo.  Therefore, there is approximately 
a 5% rental gap between in-place levels and what LLR’s portfolio can generate on a long term sustainable basis.  

In contrast, recent market asking rents, or spot rent levels have risen to 4,000 yen per tsubo.  In recent development 
projects, asking rents have been pushed upward due to total project cost increases, and to date, demand has kept 
pace with these asking rent levels.  Going forward, as the supply-demand balance deteriorates, even if spot asking 
rents were to fall, there is considerable cushion relative to LLR’s sustainable market rent levels.  Thus, there is still 
upside relative to in-place rents.  Should there be a change in market sentiment, LLR is defensively positioned as its 
rents are highly price competitive, and would be strongly resistant to any new developments looking to poach tenants 
from any of its properties. 

Distribution of Lease Maturities
The lease maturity schedule across the portfolio can be seen below.

The Weighted Average Lease Expiry (“WALE”) on a portfolio level is 2.6 years.  While this may seem relatively short, 
this is due to the multi-tenanted nature of LLR’s properties.  In addition, the lease maturity can be characterized by 
grouping the eight properties in the following manner:

1. Group 1 - LOGIPORT Higashi Ogishima (A), (B), and (C) buildings (represented in gray and light blue left):  These 
three properties are logistics properties where the majority of their leases are on Japanese standard lease terms.  
The in-place standard leases are typically on 1 to 2-year terms, and of the leases which come due each fiscal 
period, a vast majority of them automatically renew at the existing rent levels.  Should a standard lease term 
tenant give notice to vacate  its space, LLR would convert that space and sign a new tenant based on a fixed term 
lease and mark up the rental level to prevailing market levels.  As shown in the table below, of the leases that 
matured during the 2nd fiscal period, 63% were on standard lease terms while the remaining 37% were on fixed 
term leases, in addition, among the standard leases, 98% (62% / 63%) of the leases automatically renewed per 
the tenants ability to roll their lease, per Japanese lease law.  For the 2% of standard leases that did not renew, 
those spaces were converted into fixed term leases, and these new leases were signed at increased rent levels.  

2. Group 2 - LOGIPORT Kitakashiwa and LOGIPORT Nagareyama (A) and (B) (represented in light green left): 
For these three properties, there were no lease maturities during the 2nd fiscal period.  However, during the 3rd 
fiscal period, 15,800m2 (or 2.2% of the entire portfolio) of fixed term lease maturities will become due.  Given 
LLR’s active asset management strategies, 100% of these spaces are already spoken for by tenants looking to 
expand their operations, and as a result, LLR has been able to increase rent per tsubo by 4.1%.  

3. Group 3 - LOGIPORT Hashimoto and LOGIPORT Sagamihara (represented in dark blue left):  For these two 
properties, there were no lease maturities during the 2nd fiscal period.  Instead, since the LOGIPORT Hashimoto 
asset was relatively new and in the midst of its lease up phase, 5,600m2 of additional space was taken at rent 
levels that exceed LLR’s underwriting by 8.9%, pushing occupancy up to 95.2% as of the end of the 2nd fiscal 
period.  Moreover, as of the end of March 2017, occupancy has been further increased to 97.1%.  The remaining 
2.9% of space has also entered into new lease agreements; therefore, investors will see how 100% occupancy 
has been achieved at Hashimoto as of the 3rd fiscal period.  With respect to lease maturities, while a broad 
majority of leases are longer dated, there is a small amount (1.5% of total portfolio) of fixed term leases coming 
due during the 3rd fiscal period.  All of the in-place tenants associated with these leases have renewed terms 
at the same rent levels.

Lease Maturity/Renewal Periods 

Standard leases that get cancelled are converted into fixed term leases at higher mark-to-market levels. 
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Internal Growth Strategy

Tenant Diversification 
(as a % of total NRA)

Annual Rent (%) per Property

Sagawa Global Logistics 6.6%

KDDI 5.9% 

Maruzen Showa Transportation 5.7%

Nippon Logitech 5.6%

Maruwa Transportation 4.8%

SVD 4.1% 

Kusuhara Transportation 3.3%

Sankyu 3.2%

Toyo Mebius 2.9%

Maruni Business Logistics 2.8% 

Others 55.1%

Daily Products 23.0%

Food & Beverage 16.0% 

Apparel 15.0%

Electronics 12.0%

E-commerce 9.0%

Pharmaceuticals 2.0% 

Others 16.0%

LP Hashimoto 11.4%

LP Sagamihara 13.6% 

LP Kitakashiwa 14.1%

LP Nagareyama (A) & (B) 16.3%

LP Higashi Ogishima (A) 11.5%

LP Higashi Ogishima (B) 11.9% 

LP Higashi Ogishima (C) 14.3%

LP Kawagoe 6.8%

End Tenant User Industry 
Categories (Note 2)

TOP 5 
28.6%

TOP 10 
44.9%

Consumption Oriented Logistics
93.0%

Commitment to Sustainability
The LaSalle Group is not only an industry leader in promoting sustainability industry wide through diverse organi-
zations, it has also established an internal Global Sustainability Committee, which is conscious of the challenges 
involved with environmental, societal, and governance matters (collectively, “ESG”). ESG best practices incorporate: 
a) UN Principles for Responsible Investments (“PRI”); b) Urban Land Institute (“ULI”) Greenprint principles; c) Global 
Real Estate Sustainability Benchmark (“GRESB”) standards; d) Development Bank of Japan (“DBJ”) Green Building 
practices; and e) Comprehensive Assessment System for Built Environment Efficiency (“CASBEE”) guidelines.

DBJ Green Building Certification Achieved
Four of LLR’s properties received Green Building certifications.

DBJ Green Building Certification

Introduced independently by the DBJ, this certification is a comprehensive scoring model 
targeting real estate that demonstrates concern for the environment and society.  Evaluation 
is ranked on a five star scale.

LOGIPORT HashimotoTokyo-1

Star Rating

5

LOGIPORT SagamiharaTokyo-2

Star Rating

5

LOGIPORT KitakashiwaTokyo-3

Star Rating

3

LOGIPORT Nagareyama (B)Tokyo-5

Star Rating

4

Participated in Greenprint Performance Report

GRESB Real Estate Assessment

LLR participated in the 2016 fiscal year “GRESB 
Real Estate Assessment” survey which is conducted 
across real estate companies and funds.

Received CASBEE’s Architectural Evaluation 
Certification

CASBEE Certification for Buildings

This is a comprehensive evaluation which measures 
the environmental performance of buildings, energy 
saving and resource savings, load reduction and re-
cycling measures.

Committed to a Balanced Tenant Strategy 
LLR also proactively seeks a balanced representation among its tenants so that no specific industry or company is 
over–represented among tenants. This is done to prevent excess exposure to any specific industry or corporation 
and thus reduce any possible impact on lease income during economic fluctuations.

As shown in the tables below, end tenant users across industries represent a wide variety of businesses.  However, 
as mentioned in previous disclosure materials, the chart also demonstrates how modern logistics facilities are under-
pinned by consumer oriented logistics distribution demand.  In the case of LLR’s portfolio, industries such as daily 
household products, food and beverage, apparel, electronics, e-commerce, pharmaceuticals, and others make up 
93% of consumer driven demand.

Across the portfolio, no one property commands an inordinate percentage of the annual rent procured from the portfolio.

In terms of tenant level diversification, the top 5 tenants make up 28.6% of total Net Rentable Area (“NRA“) and the 
top 10 tenants make up 44.9% of total NRA, which is considered relatively dispersed in light of how typical logistics 
management is comprised of single tenanted facilities on long term 10-year leases.  Across the property portfolio that 
LLR owns, there are 99 unique tenants, which are constantly managed via the support of LRA’s sponsor.

Note 1: The figures above are as of March 31, 2017
Note 2: Calculated based on leased area
Note 3: Calculated based on an annualized rent basis
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Saitama Saitama 

Kanagawa Kanagawa 

ChibaChiba

TokyoTokyo

Port of TokyoPort of Tokyo

Haneda AirportHaneda Airport

Port of YokohamaPort of Yokohama

Tokyo Gaikan 
Expressway

Tokyo Gaikan 
Expressway

Joban 
Expressway

Joban 
Expressway

JR Tokyo StationJR Tokyo Station

Narita 
International 

Airport

Narita 
International 

Airport

Route 16Route 16

Tomei 
Expressway

Tomei 
Expressway

Higashi-Kanto 
Expressway

Higashi-Kanto 
ExpresswayChuo 

Expressway
Chuo 

Expressway

Kanetsu 
Expressway

Kanetsu 
Expressway

Tohoku 
Expressway

Tohoku 
Expressway

Metropolitan 
Inter City Expressway

Metropolitan 
Inter City Expressway

Portfolio Summary

Tokyo Area
100.0%

Greater or equal to 100,000m2

82.6%
Less than 100,000m2

17.4%

Less than 5 years
40.1%

Greater than or equal to 5 years 
and less than 10 years

24.3% 
Greater than or equal to 10 years 
and less than 20 years

13.7%
Greater than or equal to 20 years

22.0%

By Area By NRA By Property Age (Note)

As of March 1, 2017

As of March 1, 2017

Source:  Population density is prepared by the Asset Manager based on “1/2 (500m) Data by Local Grid” of the “Ranking Mesh Map - Grid Square Statistics of 2010 Population Census” 
by the Statistics Bureau, Ministry of Internal Affairs and Communications, which is based on the results of the 2010 population census conducted on October 1, 2010. 

Population Density 
(people/km2)

0-5,000
5,001-10,000
10,001-

Airport Port

Delivering a Prime Portfolio to Investors
LLR managed a prime portfolio of large logistics facilities through the 2nd fiscal period.  Additionally, LLR entered into 
a contract to acquire LOGIPORT Kawagoe at the beginning of the 3rd fiscal period.  The list below shows the portfolio 
as of March 1, 2017, the date the ninth property was acquired.

Portfolio List

Property 
No. Property Name Location GFA (m2) 

Acquisition 
Price  

(billion yen)

Appraisal Value  
(billion yen) 

 (Note 1)

Property 
Age  

(years)

PML 

(%) 

Tokyo-1 LOGIPORT Hashimoto (Note 2) Sagamihara, Kanagawa 145,801 21.2 22.4 2 1.3

Tokyo-2 LOGIPORT Sagamihara (Note 2) Sagamihara, Kanagawa 200,045 23.0 24.8 4 0.5

Tokyo-3 LOGIPORT Kitakashiwa Kashiwa, Chiba 104,302 25.3 27.5 4 0.9

Tokyo-4 LOGIPORT Nagareyama (A) Nagareyama, Chiba 17,673 3.5 3.8 9 1.6

Tokyo-5 LOGIPORT Nagareyama (B) Nagareyama, Chiba 133,414 26.6 27.9 9 2.3

Tokyo-6 LOGIPORT Higashi Ogishima (A) Kawasaki, Kanagawa 100,235 19.0 19.5 30 6.5

Tokyo-7 LOGIPORT Higashi Ogishima (B) Kawasaki, Kanagawa 117,546 19.1 21.3 26 6.2

Tokyo-8 LOGIPORT Higashi Ogishima (C) Kawasaki, Kanagawa 116,997 23.7 25.0 15 6.3

Tokyo-9 LOGIPORT Kawagoe Kawagoe, Saitama 50,742 12.0 12.0 6 4.4

Total/Average (9 Properties) 986,760 173.4 184.2 12 3.4

Note 1: Appraisal values are as of February 28, 2017. 
Note 2: Acquisition price and appraisal values for LP Hashimoto and LP Sagamihara are expressed in relative proportion to LLR’s ownership percentage of joint 

co-ownership interest. The GFA shown is of the entire property.

Note: Property age refers to the number of years from the date of the new construction of the main building of the property set out in the real estate registry to February  
28, 2017. Decimal digits are rounded to the nearest unit. 

Portfolio Distribution

18 19
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LOGIPORT KitakashiwaTokyo-3

LOGIPORT SagamiharaTokyo-2

LOGIPORT Higashi Ogishima (A)Tokyo-6

LOGIPORT Higashi Ogishima (B)Tokyo-7

LOGIPORT Higashi Ogishima (C)Tokyo-8

Building A

Building B

Building C

LOGIPORT HashimotoTokyo-1

LOGIPORT Nagareyama (A)Tokyo-4

LOGIPORT Nagareyama (B)Tokyo-5

Building A

Building B

LOGIPORT KawagoeTokyo-9



Overview of Portfolio

LOGIPORT HashimotoTokyo-1 55% trust co-ownership interest LOGIPORT SagamiharaTokyo-2 51% trust co-ownership interest

LLR acquired a 55% interest in LOGIPORT Hashimoto. Hashimo-
to is an industrial hub in Western Tokyo that has been assimilat-
ed into the larger city of Sagamihara, an ordinance designated 
city. Hashimoto enjoys excellent vehicular access with National 
Highway 16 passing through the district and also excellent access 
to multiple expressways.  The facility is also walking distance from 
the terminal station of Hashimoto, ensuring access to workers. 
Thus the facility is in a prime location, has a prime age of one 
year and at over 20 billion yen is a prime deal size.

LOGIPORT Sagamihara, one of the largest logistics facilities 
in the Kanto area, is also located in the industrial suburb of 
Sagamihara.  The site of the facility is near National Highway 
16 and within about 4km from an expressway.  The facility is 
popular for its linkage to distribution to Central and Western 
Japan via excellent access to the expressway system.  LLR 
owns 51% of the 5-story facility. Specifications include a ceiling 
height of 5.5m and 1.5 tons/m2 floor load capacity along with 
both an earthquake absorbing structure and emergency power 
generators.  The office facilities are also very modern, something 
that has become indispensable in recent years.  This combined 
with the access to train stations makes it a preferred facility for 
employees.

Location Sagamihara, Kanagawa
GFA 145,801.69m2 

NRA 130,162m2 

Acquisition price 21,200 million yen
Appraisal price 22,400 million yen
Share of portfolio 12.2% (as of Mar. 1, 2017)
Built January 2015
Occupancy 97.1% 

Location Sagamihara, Kanagawa
GFA 200,045.57m2 

NRA 180,971m2 

Acquisition price 23,020 million yen
Appraisal price 24,800 million yen
Share of portfolio 13.3% (as of Mar. 1, 2017)
Built August 2013
Occupancy 99.5%
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Overview of Portfolio

Location Kashiwa, Chiba
GFA 104,302.62m2 
NRA 100,349m2 

Acquisition price 25,300 million yen
Appraisal price 27,500 million yen
Share of portfolio 14.6% (as of Mar. 1, 2017)
Built October 2012
Occupancy 100.0%
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LOGIPORT Kitakashiwa is located in the city of Kashiwa, Chiba. 
Chiba is the prefecture to the east of Tokyo that is home to Narita 
Airport.  The six-minute pedestrian access to Kitakashiwa Station 
combined with the large population of the city means that there is 
a good supply of potential employees in the area.  The excellent 
access to national highways and being only 6km from the Joban 
Expressway provides great access to Tokyo and Eastern Japan. 
Thus the prime location combined with the more than 100,000m2 
floor area that the 6-story structure offers also means it has a 
prime value of over 20 billion yen.  The structure also features 
spiral ramps and large areas of up to 18,000m2 per floor.

LOGIPORT KitakashiwaTokyo-3 
LOGIPORT Nagareyama (A) and (B) are located on neighboring 
sites in Chiba that enjoy excellent access to the Nagareyama 
Intersection on the Joban Expressway.  LOGIPORT Nagareyama 
(A) was acquired for 3.5 billion yen, 200 million yen less than the 
appraised value and comprises 2.2% of the present portfolio. 
The property was completed during July 2008.  It is a 5-story 
steel structure that is occupied by a single tenant but can be 
renovated to fit multiple tenants.  LOGIPORT Nagareyama (B) 
has a GFA of 133,414m2 on a site of about 59,233m2. It was 
acquired for 26.6 billion yen, the price of the appraisal. At 16.5% 
of the portfolio it is the largest property in the portfolio and was 
completed in July 2008. 

LOGIPORT Nagareyama (A) and (B)Tokyo-4 and Tokyo-5 

Property LOGIPORT Nagareyama (A) LOGIPORT Nagareyama (B) 
Location Nagareyama, Chiba Nagareyama, Chiba
GFA 17,673.87m2 133,414.76m2

NRA 18,172m2 112,684m2

Acquisition price 3,500 million yen 26,600 million yen
Appraisal price 3,810 million yen 27,900 million yen
Share of portfolio 2.0% (as of Mar. 1, 2017) 15.3% (as of Mar. 1, 2017)
Built July 2008 July 2008
Occupancy 100.0% 99.8%
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Building C

Building A

Building B

LOGIPORT Higashi Ogishima (A), (B), and (C)
Tokyo-6, Tokyo-7 and Tokyo-8 LOGIPORT KawagoeTokyo-9

LOGIPORT Kawagoe is located in Kawagoe, Saitama, a suburb of 
Tokyo.  The property was acquired for 11.95 billion yen on March 
1, 2017, the first day of the 3rd fiscal period.  This acquisition 
of trust beneficiary rights exercises an option where preferred 
negotiation rights were obtained on November 30, 2016.  The 
center itself is a prime logistics center with excellent expressway 
access that enables LLR to further diversify its assets and tenants.

Location LOGIPORT Kawagoe, Saitama
GFA 50,742.47m2 
NRA 53,088m2 
Acquisition price 11,950 million yen
Appraisal price 12,000 million yen
Share of portfolio 6.9%
Built January 2011
Occupancy 100.0% (as of Mar. 1, 2017)

The LOGIPORT Higashi Ogishima properties are located on 
neighboring lots to the west of Tokyo in Kawasaki, Kanagawa, 
an industrial town strategically positioned between Tokyo and 
Yokohama.  The three properties – LOGIPORT Higashi Ogishima 
(A), (B), and (C) – are all multi-storied and multi-tenanted.  The 
total land area for LOGIPORT Higashi Ogishima (A) is 25,000m2, 
LOGIPORT Higashi Ogishima (B) is 29,901m2 and LOGIPORT 
Higashi Ogishima (C) is 25,719m2.  LOGIPORT Higashi Ogishima 
(A) has 22 tenants and combines five stories of logistic with 
ten stories of office, LOGIPORT Higashi Ogishima (B) has 18 
tenants and combines 5 stories of logistics with 10 stories of 
office, and LOGIPORT Higashi Ogishima (C) has six stories 
of logistics.  All three properties boast phenomenal access to 
the Shuto Expressway Bayshore Route’s Higashi Ogishima In-
terchange, which is only 0.5km away.  The properties are also 
only about ten minutes from the Port of Yokohama, 25 minutes 
from the Port of Tokyo and five minutes from Haneda Airport. 
Each facility has advanced specifications with double ramp ways 
enabling easy access to each floor by truck.

Property LOGIPORT Higashi Ogishima (A) LOGIPORT Higashi Ogishima (B) LOGIPORT Higashi Ogishima (C)
Location Kawasaki, Kanagawa Kawasaki, Kanagawa Kawasaki, Kanagawa
GFA 100,235.67m2 117,546.26m2 116,997.14m2 
NRA 85,281m2 103,731m2 114,925m2 
Acquisition price 19,000 million yen 19,120 million yen 23,700 million yen
Appraisal price 19,500 million yen 21,300 million yen 25,000 million yen
Share of portfolio 11.0% (as of Mar. 1, 2017) 11.0% (as of Mar. 1, 2017) 13.7% (as of Mar. 1, 2017)
Built April 1987 April 1991 September 2001
Occupancy 97.1% 94.2% 97.6%
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Distribution StrategyFinancial Strategy
Continued Observance of a Conservative, Unitholder-Friendly Strategy
LLR seeks to execute a diversified and balanced financing strategy that strengthens its financial structure, while 
remaining adaptive to changing macro-economic conditions, in order to produce stable profits over the medium to 
long term.  Key elements of LLR’s financial strategy include the following:

• Debt financing: For the purposes of new acquisition financing or existing debt refinancing, LLR will procure 
new loans and credit lines as well as issue investment corporation bonds, if LLR believes that such an avenue 
of financing would contribute to the efficiency of its operations, and by extension benefit its unitholders.  LLR 
issued two series of investment corporation bonds (4,000 million yen and 2,000 million yen) for a total of 6,000 
million yen on February 15, 2017.  The maturity of the first series is five years after issuance and the second 
series is ten years hence.  The bonds were issued to diversify financing and repay a portion of outstanding loans.

• LTV ratio: LLR intends to manage its LTV ratio on a long term basis in the range of 40-45%.  LLR is committed 
to a conservative LTV portfolio strategy.  Upon acquiring the LOGIPORT Kawagoe asset, the LTV increased 
from 34.3% to a still modest 38.7% level.  Should LLR decide to raise its LTV ratio to 45% that would imply that 
LLR could make additional debt financed acquisitions equating to an additional 20 billion yen.  

• Cash management: LLR intends to engage in efficient, optimal cash management based on a comprehensive 
understanding of the capital needs of the properties in its portfolio as well as its goal of maximizing returns to 
its unitholders through distributions in excess of its retained earnings.
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Fixed interestFloating interest Investment Corporation Bonds(bn yen)

Long-Term Debt 

Long-term Debt 

100.0%

Fixed Interest Loans

Fixed Interest 

87.7%
Floating Interest 

12.3%

LTV

38.7%

Total Interest  
Bearing Debt

71,070 mn yen

Average Remaining 
Loan Length

5.9 years

Average Weighted 
Loan Interest Rate

0.59%

As of March 1, 2017

As of March 1, 2017

A Continuous Eye toward Enhancing DPU
For each fiscal period, LLR believes that the amount of capital expenditures actually required for a logistics facility 
within its portfolio will generally be significantly less than the amount of depreciation that LLR will expense.  Therefore, 
LLR seeks to maximize returns to its unitholders by making distributions in excess of its earnings, but will do so only 
after carefully considering:

1. The macro-economic environment

2. Trends in the real estate market

3. Trends in leasing conditions

4. LLR’s financial condition

5.  Estimated amounts of capital expenditures required in order to maintain and improve upon the competitiveness 
of each property

Provided that these aforementioned conditions are favorable, LLR will aim to distribute on a regular basis an amount 
equal to approximately 30% of its depreciation expense for the immediately prior fiscal period as “distributions in 
excess of retained earnings.”

In addition, from time to time, LLR may also make additional distributions in excess of earnings in order to “smooth out” 
the effects of certain capital events that would manifest in a one-time decrease in DPU.  Such capital events include:

1. Financing events (such as the issuance of new investment units or investment corporation bonds) that typically 
result in the incurrence of one-time extraordinary costs

2. Entering into new borrowings

3. Large-scale repair expenditures

4.  Under such cases, LLR aims to make distributions in excess of its retained earnings in an amount up to approx-
imately 40% of depreciation expense for the immediately preceding fiscal period

Unitholder Distribution
LLR is paying out a total 2nd fiscal period dividend distribution of 2,650 yen per unit. This was reached by combining 
an earnings based distribution of 2,491 yen per unit with a distribution in excess of earnings related portion in the 
amount of 159 yen per unit. 

The forecast for the 3rd fiscal period’s dividend distribution is a 2,174 yen earnings based distribution with a 171 yen 
excess of earnings related portion for a total of 2,345 yen per unit.  The reason for this decrease is the positive impact 
of LOGIPORT Kawagoe’s acquisition on DPU coupled with the negative effect of the property taxes for the eight initial 
IPO assets that begin to get expensed through the income statement in the 3rd fiscal period.

Distribution Per Unit
(excluding distributions in excess 

of retained earnings)
Excess Distribution Per Unit Distribution Per Unit 

(including excess distribution)

2nd Fiscal Period 
ended February 28, 2017

Actual
2,491 yen 159 yen 2,650 yen

3rd Fiscal Period
ending August 31, 2017

Forecast
2,174 yen 171 yen 2,345 yen

Note: Actual distributions may differ from the forecast due to factors such as future acquisitions and dispositions of properties, changes in the real estate market and 
other conditions surrounding LLR. As such, LLR does not guarantee the amount of the forecasted distribution per unit. 
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LaSalle Inc. Global AUM

AUM by Property Sector AUM by Product Type AUM by Country AUM by Sector
AUM by Region and  
Securities Business

Source: LaSalle Investment Management as of the end of December 31, 2016.

Market cap
Approx. $4.6 bn 
(listed on the NYSE)

280
Officesin in

80
Countries

77,000
Employees

Public Real 
Estate Securities

Other

Multifamily

Industrial

Retail

Office

$0.5 bn

$0.3 bn

$1.9 bn

$1.7 bn

$2.3 bn

Total AUM
$58.0 bn

$2.7 bn

$0.2  bn

$3.8 bn

$1.3 bn

$4.9 bn

$14.0 bn

$6.7 bn

$17.1 bn

$20.2 bn

Public Real
 Estate Securities

Asia Pacific Private

Americas Private

Europe Private

Asia Pacific
Total AUM
$6.7 bn 

Separate Accounts

Commingled Fund/
Open-End

Commingled Fund/
Closed-End

$0.2 bn Other
$0.3 bn China

Australia

Japan

Hotel/Other

Multifamily

Industrial

Retail

Office

$14.0 bn

$4.0 bn

$5.6 bn

$7.1 bn

$11.8 bn

$15.5 bn

LaSalle Inc. Asia AUM As of December 31, 2016As of December 31, 2016

As of December 31, 2016

As of December 31, 2016

Separate Accounts
Customized mandates meeting 
the individual investment objec-
tives of clients around the world.

Global Public Securities
Actively managed global real 
estate securities programs offer-
ing diverse investment options.

700+
Employees 

in
17 

Countries

323
Investors

in
30+

Countries

$58.0 bn
Global Assets  

Under 
Management

Commingled Funds
Open and closed-end funds of-
fering investors a strategic focus 
on attractive regions, styles and 
sectors.

LaSalle Inc. is one of the world’s leading real estate investment managers that builds trust through a distinctive 
combination of knowledge, people and client focus. LaSalle Inc. is an operationally independent subsidiary of JLL, a 
global professional real estate services and advisory firm.

About LaSalle Inc.
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Jul. Sep. Feb. Mar. Aug. Mar. Aug. Oct. Dec. Mar.
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

LOGIPORT 
Kashiwa 

148,453m2

Proven Logistics Developer and Investor since 2003 (selective)
 Development   Investment  Logistics development funds

Logistics facilities investment begins in Japan

LaSalle Japan Logistics Fund I established LaSalle Japan Logistics Fund II established

Wakasu 
25,052m2

LOGIPORT
Island Hakata City 

48,852m2

LOGIPORT 
Kawasaki 
160,218m2

Hamura
42,870m2

Ichikawa 
Shiohama
66,297m2

LOGIPORT 
Osaka 

135,822m2
Sodegaura 
50,963m2

LOGIPORT
Hokkaido 
19,041m2

Hiroshima 
9,795m2

Nishiura
2 properties
6,599m2 + 
18,282m2

Daiei Kawasaki
69,064m2

First inland multi-tenanted 
logistics property

Jul. Jun. Apr. Jul. Sep. Oct. Apr. Jul. Feb. Mar.
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

LaSalle Inc. Recognized by CBRE as Top Developer of 100,000m2 and Greater  
Logistics Centers

Tatsumi 
18,161m2 

LOGIPORT
Kitakashiwa 
127,165m2 

LOGIPORT
Sagamihara
210,829m2 

Atsugi
52,375m2 

LOGIPORT
Hashimoto 
156,609m2 

LOGIPORT
Higashi Ogishima
(A), (B) and (C)

388,343m2 

LOGIPORT
Sakai Nishi
116,074m2 

LOGIPORT
Osaka Taisho

122,099m2  

Sayama Hidaka 
Fulfillment Center

23,757m2 

LaSalle Japan Logistics Fund III established

Japan’s first inland facility 
that was in close proximity 
to a train station

LOGIPORT
Nagareyama

(A) & (B) Bldg.
161,771m2 

LaSalle Group’s Professional Support Contributes to 
Greater Unitholder Value
One of the unique aspects of the LaSalle Group is its robust emphasis on both development and investment in Japan. 
The company has also managed three logistics funds to date - the LaSalle Japan Logistics 1, 2 and 3 funds.  The 
company also boasts many firsts for its developments including the first inland logistics center and the first mega 
logistics center near a train station, making it easier to secure employees for tenants and management.  The LaSalle 
Group has also survived or rather thrived through multiple real estate cycles in Japan, making decisive choices for 
developments and investments in various cycles of the market.  The IPO of LLR includes both group developed assets 
and assets acquired by its funds at optimal timings.

LaSalle Group’s Professional Support Contributes to Greater Unitholder Value
As of March 2017, development in Japan has reached nearly 3.5 million m2 of GFA with 2.0 million m2 of GFA develop-
ment and 1.6 million m2 of GFA investment. This has helped make LaSalle Inc.  the largest developer of large logistics 
facilities (GFA over 100,000m2) over the past decade in the Greater Tokyo Area.  Reflecting the extensive development 
record in particular, LaSalle Inc. has leased roughly 1.86 million m2 of space since 2003 in these facilities. This proves 
that foreign players can be major participants in the logistics real estate market both in development and investment.

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

GFA
(million m2) InvestmentDevelopment

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Development/Investment Area (cumulative base)(Note 1)

Note 1: Includes development pipeline
Note 2: Source: CBRE. Developed by a private company in Tokyo, where total floor area exceeds GFA of 100,000m2 of leasable space (as of December 31, 2016).

(thousand m2)  

0

300

600

900

LaSalle Inc. A B C D E F G H I
Source: CBRE 
Note: The above figures are aggregated data for properties completed by December 31, 2016.

Involvement in Top Ten Largest Logistics Facilities in Japan by GFA

LLR, as an investor in prime logistics facilities, has a strong track record and the table below is evidence of LaSalle 
Inc.’s strength and network in that area. Of the ten largest facilities by GFA developed in Japan, LaSalle Inc. has been 
involved in four deals. This is again proof of the ability of the LaSalle Group to secure a pipeline.

Rank Name Developer GFA (m2) Completion
1 A A 213,435 Oct. 2015

2 LOGIPORT Sagamihara LIM 200,046 Aug. 2013

3 B A 198,000 Sep. 2016

4 C B 189,742 Sep. 2016

5 (formerly) LOGIPORT Kawasaki LIM 160,218 Jan. 2008

6 D B 157,721 Jun. 2011

7 E B 155,931 Aug. 2004

8 F C 149,339 Mar. 2014

9 (formerly) LOGIPORT Kashiwa LIM 148,453 Jun. 2006

10 LOGIPORT Hashimoto LIM 145,802 Jan. 2015

Source:  CBRE “Market Data of Logistics Properties (2015 3Q)” Cumulative Development and Investment Track Record for Japanese 
Logistics Facilities
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Operation and Governance Emphasizing Unitholders’ 
Interests and Transparency
LLR and the Asset Manager implement appropriate measures to protect the interests of unitholders and minimize 
conflicts of interest while taking advantage of the support of the LaSalle Group.  In addition, the Asset Manager is 
compensated through an asset management fee linked in part to LLR’s earnings-per-unit (“EPU”), contributing to the 
alignment of its interests with those of unitholders. 

EPU Linked Asset Management Fee Structure
The Asset Manager receives management fees, which comprises type 1  - 5  management fee as described below:

Management Fee Components of Asset Manager

Alignment of Interest between Unitholders and LaSalle Group
A 4.2% share of the outstanding investment units are held by the LaSalle Group and JLL, demonstrating alignment 
of interest.

Moreover, LLR’s asset management fees are structured to be aligned with unitholders’ interests and outside experts 
on the investment committee have veto rights for new acquisitions among other governance regulations.  LLR con-
tinuously pursues a conservative strategy to deliver consistent competitive performance.

4 Type 4 management fee (acquisition and disposition fees)

Up to 1.0% of the sale price (the sale price as stated in the purchase and sale agreement in case of an acquisition/
disposition)

Acquisition/Disposition Fees

5 Type 5 management fee (merger fees)

Up to 1.0% of the aggregated appraisal amount, as of the effective date of a merger, of a party’s assets to be 
transferred to an established or surviving entity pursuant to said merger

Merger Fee

1 Type 1 management fee (asset-based fees)

Up to 0.22% per year of total assets (as stated in the balance sheet at the end of the immediately preceding 
fiscal period)

2  Type 2 management fee (operating income-based fees)

(Immediately preceding fiscal period’s ordinary income + depreciation expense + deferred assets amortization - 
transfer gains and losses of specified assets – appraisal gain or loss) x 5.8% (as an upper limit)

3  Type 3 management fee (EPU-based fees)

(Type 1 management fee + type 2 management fee) multiplied by the EPU after adjustment and multiplied by 
0.026% (as an upper limit)

Recurring Management Fees

Decision Making Flowchart for Related Party Transactions
A transparent and robust governance structure speaks to the clear decision making flowchart of the Asset Manager 
as it relates to related party transactions.  All related party transactions are subject to approvals by the Compliance 
Committee and the Investment Committee.

Measures to Prevent Conflict of Interests in Related Party Transactions

With respect to the decision making involving related party transactions, approval from the outside expert in the 
Compliance Committee and outside expert in the Investment Committee must be obtained. In addition, approval from 
the board of directors of LLR is also mandatory.
Note: The chart above illustrates the decision making flow that requires approval by the board of directors of LLR.

Attendance and 
approval by the 
outside expert is 

mandatory

Instruct to terminate or amend the acquisition plan 
or investment guideline

Instruct to terminate or amend the acquisition plan or 
investment guideline

Proposal of an acquisition plan by the Investment Department

Approval by the Compliance Officer

Deliberation and resolution by the Compliance Committee

Proposal by the General Manager of the Investment Department to 
the Investment Committee

Deliberation and resolution by the Investment Committee

Deliberation and resolution of the board of directors  
(of the Asset Manager) in the case of an acquisition plan

Approval by the board of directors of LLR
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Risk Factors
An investment in LLR’s units includes significant risks.  The principal risks include the following.

Property and Business Risks
• LLR has a limited operating history.
• The Asset Manager has limited experience in operating a J-REIT.
• LLR’s financial forecasts and other targets are necessarily speculative and subject to uncertainties.
• Any adverse conditions in the Japanese economy could adversely affect LLR.
• LLR’s strategy of investing in logistics facilities may entail risks uncommon to other J-REITs that invest in a broader 

range of real estate or real estate-related assets.
• LLR may not be able to acquire properties to execute its growth and investment strategy in a manner that is accretive 

to earnings, and the scope of the pipeline support provided by the Sponsor is limited to the provision of information 
at the Sponsor’s discretion.

• Illiquidity in the real estate market may limit LLR’s ability to grow or adjust its portfolio.
• The past experience of the LaSalle Group in the Japanese real estate market is not an indicator or guarantee of 

LLR’s future results.
• LLR’s reliance on the Sponsor and other LaSalle Group companies could have a material adverse effect on its business.
• There are potential conflicts of interest between LLR and certain LaSalle Group companies, including the Asset 

Manager, Sponsor Funds and other JLL group companies.
• LLR faces significant competition in seeking tenants and it may be difficult to find replacement tenants.
• LLR’s properties may cater to a single tenant, making it difficult to find replacement tenants.
• Increases in prevailing market interest rates, including as a result of the Bank of Japan’s additional monetary easing, 

could increase LLR’s interest expenses and may result in a decline in the market price of its units.
• Seven of the eight properties in LLR’s portfolio each comprise over 10.0% by acquisition price, which could have an 

adverse effect on the business, financial condition and results of operation.
• LLR may suffer large losses if any of its properties incurs damage from a natural or man-made disaster or in the event 

of an accident or disaster stemming from faulty installation or age-related deterioration.
 ■ Damage to any one or more of the properties in LLR’s portfolio, due to natural disaster, such as a flood, earthquake, 
or tsunami, or due to a man-made disaster, such as a fire or accident, could adversely affect LLR’s business, and 
financial conditions, and result in a decline in operating results.  For example, Japan is earthquake-prone and has 
historically experienced numerous large earthquakes that have resulted in extensive property damage, such as 
the Great East Japan Earthquake in 2011, which resulted in a tsunami and leakage of radioactive material at the 
Fukushima nuclear power plants.  Furthermore, tenants or the infrastructure and access to LLR properties may 
be adversely affected by any natural disaster, causing tenants to leave properties or seek lower rents.

 ■ In addition, LLR may be required to compensate its tenants or third parties in the event of an accident or disaster 
at any of its properties stemming from any faulty installation or age-related deterioration, such as an elevator 
accident or water leakage, that results in injury, death or other damage to tenants or third parties.

 ■ To the extent reasonably available, LLR intends to carry casualty insurance covering all of its properties for many 
types of casualty losses with policy specification and insured limits that LLR believes are adequate and appropriate 
under the current circumstances.  In particular, LLR will consider obtaining earthquake insurance coverage for 
those properties with a probable maximum loss (“PML”) due to an earthquake, exceeding 15%, which currently 
does not apply to any of the properties within the existing portfolio of assets under management.

• Any property defect may adversely affect LLR’s financial condition and results of operation.
• LLR’s portfolio contains certain properties located on reclaimed land, which is subject to unique risks, including land 

liquefaction. 
• The properties in LLR’s portfolio are concentrated in the Tokyo area, and it may have additional property concentration 

in the Osaka area in the future.
• Any inability to obtain financing for future acquisitions could adversely affect the growth of LLR’s portfolio.
• Liquidity and other limitations on LLR’s activities under debt financing arrangements may adversely affect the business, 

financial condition and results of operation.
• LLR’s policy to make distributions to unitholders in excess of retained earnings is not commonly employed by other 

J-REITs and is thus still subject to uncertainties.
• A high LTV ratio may increase exposure to changes in interest rates and have a material adverse effect on results 

of operations.
• LLR may suffer impairment losses relating to its properties.

• Decreases in tenant leaseholder deposits and/or security deposits may increase LLR’s funding costs.
• LLR’s lack of control over operating costs may adversely affect its business.
• LLR may lose rental revenues in the event of lease terminations, decreased lease renewals, or the default of a tenant 

as a result of financial difficulty or insolvency, and is exposed to the risk of careless or imprudent management of 
properties by tenants.

• Master lease agreements expose LLR to certain risks.
• The cost of complying with regulations applicable to LLR’s properties could adversely affect the results of its operations.
• LLR relies on expert appraisals and engineering, environmental and seismic reports, which are subject to significant 

uncertainties.
• LLR relies on industry and market data that are subject to significant uncertainties.
• LLR’s buildings may violate earthquake resistance or other building codes, and any such buildings may collapse in 

even minor earthquakes or may be required to be strengthened or demolished by LLR at significant expense.
• The environmental assessments of properties made prior to ownership may not uncover all environmental liabilities, 

and Japanese laws subject property owners to strict environmental liabilities.
• LLR may incur additional costs due to preferential purchase rights, rights of first refusal or other similar rights held 

by lessees or tenants.
• Entering into forward commitment contracts or contracts to purchase properties under development may expose LLR 

to contractual penalties and market risks.
• LLR may be exposed to regulatory and financial risks related to climate change.
• LLR’s success depends on the performance of service providers to which LLR is required to assign various key 

functions.
• LLR’s performance depends on the efforts of key personnel of the Asset Manager.
• Unitholders have limited control over changes in LLR’s investment policies.
• J-REITs and their asset managers are subject to tight supervision by the regulatory authorities.
• LLR’s failure to satisfy a complex series of requirements pursuant to Japanese tax regulations would disqualify itself 

from certain taxation benefits and significantly reduce cash distributions to its unitholders.
• If the Japanese tax authorities disagree with the interpretations of the Japanese tax laws and regulations LLR used 

for prior periods, LLR may be forced to pay additional taxes for those periods.
• LLR may not be able to benefit from reductions in certain real estate taxes enjoyed by qualified J-REITs.
• Changes in Japanese tax laws may significantly increase the LLR’s tax burden.
• LLR expects to be treated as a “passive foreign investment company” for U.S. federal income tax purposes.
• Unitholders may be subject to U.S. Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (“FATCA”) withholding tax after 2018.

Legal and Regulatory Risks
• LLR’s ownership rights in some properties may be declared invalid or limited.
• LLR may lose its rights in a property LLR intended to acquire if the purchase of the property is characterized as a 

secured financing.
• LLR’s leasehold or subleasehold rights may be terminated or may not be asserted against a third party in some cases.
• Some of LLR’s properties may be held in the form of a property or trust co-ownership interest, and LLR’s rights relating 

to such properties may be affected by the intentions of other co-owners.
• LLR may hold interests in some properties through preferred shares of Japanese special purpose companies (tokutei 

mokuteki kaisha) in the future, and illiquidity in the market for such shares may limit LLR’s ability to sell its interest, 
and the rights relating to the properties held by such special purposes companies may be limited.

• LLR may hold interests in some properties through Japanese anonymous association (tokumei kumiai) agreements, 
and LLR’s rights relating to such properties may be limited.

• LLR owns all of its properties through trust beneficiary interests and may suffer losses as a trust beneficiary.
• There are important differences regarding the rights of unitholders in a J-REIT compared to those of shareholders 

in a corporation.
• The Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive (“AIFMD”)  may negatively affect LLR’s ability to market its 

units within the European Economic Area (“EEA”)  and increase compliance costs associated with the marketing of 
LLR’s units in the EEA.

• LLR’s units may be deemed to constitute “plan assets” for Employee Retirement Income Security Act (“ERISA”)  
purposes, which may lead to the rescission of certain transactions, tax or fiduciary liability and it being held in violation 
of ERISA requirements.
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Balance Sheets Statements of Income
Thousands of yen

As of 
 February 28, 2017 August 31, 2016

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and deposits (Notes 3 and 4) ¥    4,538,137 ¥    4,244,719
Cash and deposits in trust (Notes 3 and 4) 4,075,991 4,266,658
Operating accounts receivable 106,999 80,400
Prepaid expenses 86,727 67,645
Deferred tax assets (Note 13) 0 41
Other 176 63

Total current assets 8,808,032 8,659,527
Non-current assets

Property and equipment (Note 6)
Buildings in trust 53,363,816 53,309,846
Structures in trust 7,729 3,459
Tools, furniture and fixtures in trust 80 80
Land in trust 110,806,002 110,806,002

Less: accumulated depreciation (1,260,516) (677,263)
Total property and equipment 162,917,112 163,442,126

Investments and other assets
Long-term prepaid expenses 344,194 326,943
Lease and guarantee deposits 10,000 10,117

Total investments and other assets 354,194 337,061
Total non-current assets 163,271,307 163,779,187

Deferred assets
Deferred organization expenses 26,204 29,860
Investment corporation bond issuance costs 38,764 –

Total deferred assets 64,968 29,860
Total Assets ¥172,144,308 ¥172,468,575

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Operating accounts payable ¥       115,061 ¥       103,029
Short-term loans payable (Notes 4 and 11) 1,690,000 3,690,000
Accounts payable 738,202 1,085,571
Accrued expenses 869 –
Income taxes payable 609 1,842
Accrued consumption taxes 100,750 158,850
Advances received 820,072 815,597
Other 615,052 327,569

Total current liabilities 4,080,617 6,182,459
Non-current liabilities

Investment corporation bonds payable (Notes 4 and 12) 6,000,000 –
Long-term loans payable  (Notes 4, 5 and 11) 51,280,000 55,280,000
Tenant leasehold and security deposits in trust (Note 4) 1,881,801 2,145,534

Total non-current liabilities 59,161,801 57,425,534
Total Liabilities 63,242,419 63,607,993
NET ASSETS (Note 10)

Unitholders' equity
Unitholders' capital 106,161,565 106,363,965

Units authorized:
10,000,000 units as of February 28, 2017 and August 31, 2016

Units issued and outstanding:
1,100,000 units as of February 28, 2017 and August 31, 2016

Surplus
Retained earnings 2,740,324 2,496,616

Total unitholders' equity 108,901,889 108,860,581
Total Net Assets 108,901,889 108,860,581
Total Liabilities and Net Assets ¥172,144,308 ¥172,468,575

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Thousands of yen
For the periods ended 

 February 28, 2017 August 31, 2016
Operating revenues (Note 8)

Rent revenue ¥4,411,877 ¥4,687,275
Other lease business revenue 441,141 442,863

Total operating revenue 4,853,019 5,130,139
Operating expenses (Note 8)

Expenses related to rent business 1,172,581 1,282,837
Asset management fee 633,517 600,537
Asset custody and administrative fee 23,600 25,882
Directors' compensations 3,600 6,000
Audit fee 10,000 –
Other operating expenses 53,344 43,733

Total operating expenses 1,896,643 1,958,991
Operating income 2,956,375 3,171,147
Non-operating revenues

Interest income 41 205
Interest on tax refund 20 7,844

Total non-operating income 62 8,049
Non-operating expenses

Interest expenses 179,774 204,153
Interest expenses on investment corporation bonds 783 –
Amortization of deferred organization expenses 3,656 6,718
Amortization of investment corporation bond issuance costs 524 –
Investment unit issuance expenses – 9,902
Other offering costs associated with issuance of investment 
units – 322,146

Borrowing related expenses 31,434 132,826
Other non-operating expenses – 5,000

Total non-operating expenses 216,174 680,748
Ordinary income 2,740,264 2,498,448
Income before income taxes 2,740,264 2,498,448
Income taxes - current 615 1,873
Income taxes - deferred 40 (41)
Total income taxes 656 1,832
Net income 2,739,607 2,496,616
Retained earnings brought forward 716 –
Retained earnings at end of period ¥2,740,324 ¥2,496,616

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statements of Cash FlowsStatements of Changes in Net Assets
Thousands of yen

For the periods ended 
 February 28, 2017 August 31, 2016

Cash flows from operating activities:
Income before income taxes ¥2,740,264 ¥2,498,448
Depreciation 583,252 677,263
Amortization of deferred organization expenses 3,656 6,718
Amortization of investment corporation bond issuance costs 524 –
Investment unit issuance expenses – 9,902
Interest income (41) (205)
Interest expenses 180,558 204,153
Decrease (increase) in operating accounts receivable (26,599) (80,400)
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses (19,081) (67,645)
Decrease (increase) long-term prepaid expenses (17,251) (326,943)
Increase (decrease) in operating accounts payable 12,032 103,029
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (359,162) 1,083,105
Increase (decrease) in accrued consumption taxes (58,100) 158,850
Increase (decrease) in advances received 4,475 815,597
Payment of organization expenses – (36,579)
Other, net (1,300) 1,414

Subtotal 3,043,226 5,046,710
Interest income received 41 205
Interest expenses paid (179,688) (204,153)
Income taxes paid (1,848) (31)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 2,861,730 4,842,730
Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchase of property and equipment in trust (46,445) (164,116,923)
Proceeds from tenant leasehold and  
security deposits in trust 44,915 1,577,342

Repayments of tenant leasehold and  
security deposits in trust (34,150) (94,367)

Proceeds from collection of lease and guarantee deposits 117 –
Payments for lease and guarantee deposits – (10,117)

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (35,563) (162,644,065)
Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from short-term loans payable 1,690,000 12,758,000
Repayments of short-term loans payable (3,690,000) (9,068,000)
Proceeds from long-term loans payable – 55,280,000
Repayments of long-term loans payable (4,000,000) –
Proceeds from issuance of investment corporation bonds 5,960,711 –
Proceeds from  issuance of investment units – 106,354,062
Payment of distributions of retained earnings (2,489,548) –
Payment of distributions in excess of retained earnings (201,754) –

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (2,730,592) 165,324,062
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 95,575 7,522,727
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 7,522,727 –
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period (Note 3) ¥7,618,302 ¥7,522,727

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Thousands of yen

Number of units
Unitholders’ 

Capital Retained earnings Total net assets
Balance as of October 9, 2015 (Note 10)               – ¥                  – ¥              – ¥                  –

Issuance of new units for establishment  
as of October 9, 2015 1,500 150,000 150,000

Issuance of new units on February 16, 
2016 and March 15, 2016 1,098,500 106,213,965 106,213,965

Net income 2,496,616 2,496,616

Balance as of August 31, 2016  (Note 10) 1,100,000 ¥106,363,965 ¥2,496,616 ¥108,860,581
Distributions in excess of retained 
earnings (202,400) (202,400)

Distributions of retained earnings (2,495,900) (2,495,900)

Net income 2,739,607 2,739,607

Balance as of February 28, 2017 (Note 10) 1,100,000 ¥106,161,565 ¥2,740,324 ¥108,901,889

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

a) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and cash in trust, floating deposits, deposits in trust and short-
term investments that are very liquid and realizable with a maturity of three months or less when purchased, and 
that are subject to insignificant risks of changes in value.

b) Property and Equipment
Depreciation of property and equipment, including property and equipment in trust, is calculated by the straight-line 
method over the estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings 2-79 years
Structures 10-20 years
Tools, furniture and fixtures 6 years

c) Tax on Property and Equipment
With respect to property taxes, city planning taxes, and depreciable asset taxes, of the tax amount assessed and 
determined, the amount corresponding to the relevant fiscal period is accounted for as leasing expenses.
Of the amounts paid for the acquisition of real estate properties or beneficiary rights in trust of real estate, the 
amount estimated of property tax is capitalized as part of the acquisition cost of the relevant property instead of 
being charged as expenses. Capitalized property taxes amounted to 702,673 thousand yen for the period ended 
August 31, 2016, and is not applicable for the period ended February 28, 2017.

d) Investment Unit Issuance Expenses
The full amount of investment unit issuance expenses is recorded as expenses at the time of expenditure.

e) Organization Expenses
All organization expenses are amortized using the straight-line method over five years.

f) Investment corporation bond issuance costs
Investment corporation bond issuance costs are amortized using the straight-line method over the respective 
terms of the bonds.

g) Hedge Accounting
LLR enters into derivative transactions in order to hedge against risks defined in its Articles of Incorporation. In 
compliance with the general risk management policy, LLR uses interest rate swaps for the purpose of hedging 
its risk exposure associated with interest on variable rate loans payable. Where deferral accounting is generally 
adopted for hedge transactions, LLR applies deferred hedge accounting. However, special accounting treatment 
provided under Japanese GAAP is applied to those interest rate swaps that meet the criteria for special accounting 
treatment. Under the special accounting treatment, interest rate swaps are not measured at fair value, but the 
differential paid or received amount under the swap agreements is recognized and included in interest expense 
or income, respectively.

Assessment of the hedge effectiveness has been omitted since all interest rate swaps meet the specific matching 
criteria under the special accounting treatment.

h) Beneficiary Rights in Trust
As to beneficiary rights in trust, all assets and liabilities for assets in trust, as well as the related income generated 
and expenses incurred, are recorded in the relevant balance sheet and statement of income accounts.
The following material items of assets in trust recognized in the relevant account items are listed separately on 
the balance sheets.

 (i) Cash and deposits in trust
 (ii) Buildings in trust, structures in trust, tools, furniture and fixtures in trust, land in trust

 (iii) Tenant leasehold and security deposits in trust

i) Consumption Taxes
Transactions subject to consumption taxes are recorded at amounts exclusive of consumption taxes. Net payable 
to, or receivable from tax authorities is recognized as consumption taxes payable or receivable on the balance 
sheets, and net movement is treated as operating cash flows in the statements of cash flows.

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents
The relationship between cash and cash equivalents in the statements of cash flows and the balance sheets is as 
follows:

Thousands of yen
As of

February 28, 2017  August 31, 2016
Cash and deposits ¥4,538,137 ¥4,244,719
Cash and deposits in trust 4,075,991 4,266,658
Restricted deposits in trust (Note) (995,826) (988,650)
Cash and cash equivalents ¥7,618,302 ¥7,522,727

(Note)  Restricted deposits held in trust are reserved for the refund of leases and guarantee deposits received from 
tenants.

1. Organization and Basis of Presentation
a) Organization

With LaSalle REIT Advisors as the organizer, LaSalle LOGIPORT REIT (“LLR”) was established with capital of 150 
million yen (1,500 units) on October 9, 2015 pursuant to the Act on Investment Trusts and Investment Corporations 
(“Investment Trusts Act,” Act. No. 198 of 1951, including subsequent amendments). LLR issued new investment 
units (1,050,800 units) through a public offering with a payment date of February 16, 2016 and was listed on the 
J-REIT section of the Tokyo Stock Exchange (Securities Code: 3466) on February 17, 2016. Subsequently, on 
March 15, 2016, LLR issued new investment units (47,700 units) through a third-party allotment associated with 
the aforementioned public offering. As a result, the total number of issued and outstanding investment units as of 
February 28, 2017 is 1,100,000 units.

On February 17, 2016, LLR acquired and began managing eight properties (combined acquisition price of 161,440 
million yen).

These eight properties (with total leasable floor area of 699,028m2) comprise LLR’s asset holdings as of February 
28, 2017, and the occupancy rate for the entire portfolio as of February 28, 2017 is 97.8%.

b)  Basis of Presentation
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions set forth in the 
Investment Trust Law and the Japanese Financial Instruments and Exchange Act and their related accounting 
regulations. They are also in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan (hereinafter “Jap-
anese GAAP”), which are different in certain aspects as to the application and disclosure requirements from the 
International Financial Reporting Standards.

The accompanying financial statements have been reformatted and translated into English from the financial 
statements of LLR prepared in accordance with Japanese GAAP, and filed with the appropriate Local Finance 
Bureau of the Ministry of Finance as required by the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act. In preparing these 
financial statements, certain reclassifications and modifications have been made to the financial statements issued 
domestically in order to present them in a format which is more familiar to readers outside Japan. 

As permitted by the regulations under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act of Japan, amounts of less than 
one thousand yen have been omitted. As a result, the totals shown in the accompanying financial statements do 
not necessarily agree with the sums of the individual amounts.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
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Notes to Financial Statements
4. Financial Instruments
a) Detailed Information on Financial Instruments

(i) Policy for Financial Instruments
At the time of acquisition of new portfolio assets, LLR procures funds through the issuance of investment units, 
borrowing from financial institutions or issuing short-term corporate bonds.
LLR manages surplus funds as deposits, taking security and liquidity into account with due consideration of  
market conditions and its own cash flow situation.
In addition, LLR uses derivatives transactions to hedge against interest rate fluctuation risks and other risks 
associated with loans and other funding sources, and does not engage in speculative transactions.

(ii) Financial Instruments, their Risks and Risk Management System
LLR manages surplus funds as deposits, and although they are exposed to credit risks such as the solvency 
of the financial institutions where they are deposited, LLR makes deposits carefully for short-term deposit 
maturities only, taking security and liquidity into account with due consideration of market conditions and its 
own cash flow situation.

LLR uses borrowings and investment corporation bonds for purposes such as procuring funds for the acqui-
sition of real estate properties, repayment of borrowings and redemption of investment corporation bonds. 
Although  they are exposed to liquidity risks at the time of repayment, LLR mitigates liquidity risk by spreading 
out repayment dates, diversifying its financing sources and securing liquidity, and manages liquidity risk by 
methods such as preparing cash flow plans. In addition, among borrowings, as some of the loans are in the 
form of floating rate exposures, exposed to the risk of rising interest rates, LLR endeavors to keep the impact 
of higher interest payments on operations to a minimum by maintaining a conservative ratio of interest-bearing 
debt and by increasing the ratio of long-term loans payable in its borrowings.

(iii) Supplemental Explanation Regarding Fair Values of Financial Instruments
The fair value of financial instruments includes the value based on market prices, but when there is no market 
price available, the value is determined through a reasonable estimation. Certain assumptions are used in the 
calculation of their estimated values and thus, when different assumptions are used, the resulting estimated 
values may be different.

b) Estimated Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The book value, fair value and differences  between the two values as of February 28, 2017 and August 31, 2016 
are as follows. Financial instruments for which the fair value is difficult to estimate are excluded from the following 
table (see Note 2 below).

Thousands of yen
As of February 28, 2017

Book value Fair value Difference
(1) Cash and deposits ¥  4,538,137 ¥  4,538,137 ¥           –
(2) Cash and deposits in trust 4,075,991 4,075,991 –

Total assets ¥  8,614,128 ¥  8,614,128 ¥           –
(3) Short-term loans payable 1,690,000 1,690,000 –
(4) Investment corporation bonds payable 6,000,000 6,012,800 12,800
(5) Long-term loans payable 51,280,000 51,885,042 605,042

Total liabilities ¥58,970,000 ¥59,587,842 ¥617,842
(6) Derivative transactions ¥                – ¥                – ¥           –

Thousands of yen
As of August 31, 2016

Book value Fair value Difference
(1) Cash and deposits ¥  4,244,719 ¥  4,244,719 ¥           –
(2) Cash and deposits in trust 4,266,658 4,266,658 –

Total assets ¥  8,511,377 ¥  8,511,377 ¥           –
(3) Short-term loans payable 3,690,000 3,690,000 –
(5) Long-term loans payable 55,280,000 55,917,008 637,008

Total liabilities ¥58,970,000 ¥59,607,008 ¥637,008
(6) Derivative transactions ¥                – ¥                – ¥           –

(Note 1) Methods to estimate fair values of financial instruments
(1)   Cash and deposits and (2) Cash and deposits in trust

Due to the short maturities, the book value of these instruments is deemed to be a reasonable ap-
proximation of the fair value, and therefore, the book value is used as the fair value.

(3) Short-term loans payable
Due to the short maturities and their variable interest rate, the book value of these instruments is 
deemed to be a reasonable approximation of the fair value, and therefore, the book value is used as 
the fair value.

(4) Investment corporation bonds payable
The reference statistical prices disclosed by the Japan Securities Dealers Association are used as 
the fair value.

(5) Long-term loans payable
The fair value of long-term loans payable is determined based on the present value of contractual 
cash flows which would be applicable to new loans payable under the same conditions and terms.

(6) Derivative transactions
Please refer to Note 5, “Derivative Transactions.”

(Note 2) Financial instruments for which fair value is extremely difficult to estimate
As tenant leasehold and security deposits in trust have no observable and available market price, and it 
is impracticable to reasonably estimate their future cash flows, the fair value is not disclosed.

Thousands of yen
As of

February 28, 2017  August 31, 2016
Tenant leasehold and security deposits in trust ¥1,881,801 ¥2,145,534

(Note 3) Redemption schedule for monetary claims after February 28, 2017

Thousands of yen
As of February 28, 2017

Due within 
one year

Due after  
one to two 

years

Due after  
two to three 

years

Due after 
three to four 

years

Due after  
four to five 

years

Due after  
five years

Cash and deposits ¥4,538,137 ¥              – ¥              – ¥              – ¥              – ¥              –
Cash and deposits in trust 4,075,991 – – – – –

Total ¥8,614,128 ¥              – ¥              – ¥              – ¥              – ¥              –
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Notes to Financial Statements
Redemption schedule for monetary claims after August 31, 2016

Thousands of yen
As of August 31, 2016

Due within 
one year

Due after  
one to two 

years

Due after  
two to three 

years

Due after 
three to four 

years

Due after  
four to five 

years

Due after  
five years

Cash and deposits ¥4,244,719 ¥              – ¥              – ¥              – ¥              – ¥              –
Cash and deposits in trust 4,266,658 – – – – –

Total ¥8,511,377 ¥              – ¥              – ¥              – ¥              – ¥              –

(Note 4) Repayment schedule for short-term and long-term loans payable after February 28, 2017.
Thousands of yen

As of February 28, 2017

Due within 
one year

Due after  
one to two 

years

Due after  
two to three 

years

Due after 
three to four 

years

Due after  
four to five 

years

Due after  
five years

Short-term loans payable ¥1,690,000 ¥              – ¥              – – ¥              – ¥                –
Investment corporation 
bonds payable – – – – 4,000,000 2,000,000

Long-term loans payable – 3,540,000 – 10,740,000 – 37,000,000
Total ¥1,690,000 ¥3,540,000 ¥              – ¥10,740,000 ¥4,000,000 ¥39,000,000

 Repayment schedule for short-term and long-term loans payable after August 31, 2016.
Thousands of yen

As of August 31, 2016

Due within 
one year

Due after  
one to two 

years

Due after  
two to three 

years

Due after 
three to four 

years

Due after  
four to five 

years

Due after  
five years

Short-term loans payable ¥3,690,000 ¥              – ¥              – ¥              – ¥                – ¥                –
Long-term loans payable – – 7,540,000 – 10,740,000 37,000,000

Total ¥3,690,000 ¥              – ¥7,540,000 ¥              – ¥10,740,000 ¥37,000,000

5. Derivative Transactions
For the periods ended February 28, 2017 and August 31, 2016, LLR only utilized interest rate swaps, which qualified 
for hedge accounting and met the special matching criteria, as described below.

Thousands of yen
As of February 28, 2017

Contract amount
Hedge  

accounting method
Type of  

derivative
Primary  

hedged item Total Due after  
one year Fair value Fair value 

measurement

Special treatment for 
interest rate swaps

Interest rate Swaps 
Receive floating/Pay fixed

Long-term  
loans payable ¥28,690,000 ¥28,690,000 (Note) (Note)

(Note)  Interest rate swaps, designated as hedged items, under the special accounting treatment are accounted for 
as an integral part of long-term loans payable. Therefore, the fair value is included in long-term loans payable 
disclosed in the aforementioned Note 4, “Financial Instruments, b) Estimated Fair Value of Financial Instru-
ments, (5) Long-term loans payable.”

Thousands of yen
As of August 31, 2016

Contract amount
Hedge  

accounting method
Type of  

derivative
Primary  

hedged item Total Due after  
one year Fair value Fair value 

measurement
Special treatment for 
interest rate swaps

Interest rate Swaps 
Receive floating/Pay fixed

Long-term  
loans payable ¥28,690,000 ¥28,690,000 (Note) (Note)

(Note)  Interest rate swaps, designated as hedged items, under the special accounting treatment are accounted for 
as an integral part of long-term loans payable. Therefore, the fair value is included in long-term loans payable 
disclosed in the aforementioned Note 4, “Financial Instruments, b) Estimated Fair Value of Financial Instru-
ments, (5) Long-term loans payable.”

6. Property and Equipment
The following table summarizes the property and equipment as of February 28, 2017 and August 31, 2016.

Thousands of yen
As of February 28, 2017

At cost
Beginning 
balance Increase Decrease Ending balance Accumulated 

depreciation Book value

Buildings in trust ¥ 53,309,846 ¥53,969 ¥               – ¥ 53,363,816 ¥1,260,220        ¥ 52,103,595
Structures in trust 3,459 4,270 – 7,729 285 7,444
Tools, furniture and  
fixtures in trust 80  – – 80 10 70

Land in trust 110,806,002  – – 110,806,002  – 110,806,002
Total ¥164,119,389 ¥58,239 ¥               – ¥164,177,628 ¥1,260,516 ¥162,917,112

Thousands of yen
As of August 31, 2016

At cost
Beginning 
balance Increase Decrease Ending balance Accumulated 

depreciation Book value

Buildings in trust ¥               – ¥ 53,309,846 ¥               – ¥  53,309,846 ¥ 677,203 ¥  52,632,643
Structures in trust – 3,459 – 3,459 56 3,403
Tools, furniture and  
fixtures in trust – 80 – 80 3 77

Land in trust – 110,806,002 – 110,806,002 – 110,806,002
Total ¥               – ¥164,119,389 ¥               – ¥164,119,389 ¥677,263 ¥163,442,126

(Note)  The increase for the period ended August 31, 2016, was mainly due to the acquisition of eight properties during 
the period with a total value of 164,034,318 thousand yen.
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7. Investment and Rental Properties
LLR owns leased logistics properties mainly in the Tokyo and Osaka areas for the purpose of earning rent income. 
The opening book value, changes during the fiscal period and the fiscal period end fair value of the properties are 
as follows:

Thousands of yen
For the periods ended

 February 28, 2017 August 31, 2016
Book value (Note 1)

Balance at the beginning of the period ¥ 163,442,126 ¥                  –
Changes during the period (Note 2) (525,013) 163,442,126
Balance at the end of the period ¥ 162,917,112 ¥163,442,126

Fair value at the end of the period  (Note 3) ¥ 172,210,000 ¥167,610,000

(Note 1) Book value is calculated by deducting accumulated depreciation from the acquisition cost.
(Note 2)  The decrease for period ended February 28, 2017, was a result of the recognition of depreciation of 583,252 

thousand yen. In addition, the increase for period ended August 31, 2016, was a result of the acquisition of 
eight properties during the period with a total value of 164,034,318 thousand yen, offset slightly by depreciation 
expenses of 677,263 thousand yen.

(Note 3)  The fair value at the end of the period is stated at the appraisal value obtained from an independent real 
estate appraiser. 

8. Property-related Revenues and Expenses
The following table summarizes the revenues and expenses generated from property leasing activities for the periods 
ended February 28, 2017 and August 31, 2016.

Thousands of yen
For the periods ended 

 February 28, 2017 August 31, 2016
(1) Real estate leasing revenues

Rent revenue
Rent income ¥3,959,491  ¥4,206,273  
Common service fee  452,386 481,001

Total ¥4,411,877 ¥4,687,275
Other lease business revenue

Utilities charge reimbursement ¥   258,777 ¥   276,434
Parking revenue 117,019 119,427
Other lease revenues 65,344 47,001

Total ¥   441,141 ¥   442,863
Total real estate leasing revenues ¥4,853,019 ¥5,130,139

(2) Real estate leasing expenses
Leasing expenses

Outsourcing costs ¥   265,093 ¥   283,988
Utilities expenses 232,373 261,841
Insurance premiums  9,835 10,877
Repair and maintenance  58,398 24,473
Depreciation  583,252 677,263
Other leasing expenses 23,627 24,393

Total real estate leasing expenses ¥1,172,581 ¥1,282,837
(3) Real estate leasing profit ((1) - (2)) ¥3,680,438 ¥3,847,301

9. Leases
The future minimum rent revenue from tenants, subsequent to fiscal period end, under non-cancelable operating 
leases of properties is as follows:

Thousands of yen
As of 

 February 28, 2017 August 31, 2016
Due within one year ¥ 5,470,786 ¥  5,720,623
Due after one year 14,267,982 16,436,146
Total ¥19,738,768 ¥22,156,769

10. Net Assets
a) Stated Capital

LLR issues only non-par value units in accordance with the Act on Investment Trusts and Investment Corporations 
of Japan, and all issue amounts of new units are designated as stated capital. LLR maintains at least 50,000 
thousand yen as minimum net assets as required by Article 67, Paragraph 4 of the Act on Investment Trusts and 
Investment Corporations.

b) Unitholders’ Capital
Unitholders’ capital as of February 28, 2017 and August 31, 2016 consists of the following items: 

Thousands of yen
As of 

 February 28, 2017 August 31, 2016
Unitholders’ capital, gross ¥106,363,965 ¥106,363,965
Deduction from unitholders’ capital;

Accumulated distribution in excess of retained 
earnings (202,400)                   –

 Unitholders’ capital ¥106,161,565 ¥106,161,565

c) Distributions
With regard to the distributions for this fiscal period, in an effort to include LLR’s profit distributions as tax deduct-
ible expenses in accordance with Section 1 of Article 67-15 of the Act on Special Taxation Measures Law, the 
distribution amount represents the entire unappropriated retained earnings for the fiscal period, excluding fractional 
amounts less than one yen.

Yen
For the periods ended 

 February 28, 2017 August 31, 2016
Total Per unit Total Per unit

I Unappropriated retained earnings ¥2,740,324,515 ¥2,496,616,937
II Distributions in excess of retained earnings

Deduction from unitholders’ capital 174,900,000 202,400,000
III Distributions

Distributions of retained earnings 2,740,100,000 2,491 2,495,900,000 2,269
Distributions in excess of retained earnings 174,900,000 159 202,400,000 184

Total distributions 2,915,000,000 2,650 2,698,300,000 2,453
IV Retained earnings carried forward ¥          224,515 ¥          716,937

Pursuant to the “Distribution Policy” as defined in Article 36, Paragraph 1 of Article 2 of incorporation of LLR, the 
amount of distributions shall be the amount which does not exceed the amount of profits but exceeds 90% of the 
distributable profit as defined in Article 67-15 of the Special Taxation Measures Act.

46 47

LaSalle LOGIPORT REIT



Notes to Financial Statements
Based on the policy, LLR declared the distribution amount of 2,740,100,000 yen and 2,495,900,000 yen for the 
periods ended February 28, 2017 and August 31, 2016, respectively. These amounts were equivalent to the 
maximum integral multiples of number of investment units issued and outstanding as of the fiscal period.

Based on the distribution policy as defined in Article 36, Paragraph 2 of the articles of incorporation, LLR shall make 
distributions in excess of retained earnings, as a return of unitholders’ capital, each fiscal period on a continuous 
basis.

Accordingly, LLR declared distributions in excess of retained earnings of 174,900,000 yen and 202,400,000 yen, as 
a return of unitholders’ capital, which was the amount equivalent to approximately 30% of depreciation expense of 
583,252,821 yen and 677,263,181 yen for the periods ended February 28, 2017 and August 31, 2016, respectively.

11. Short-term and Long-term Loans Payable
Short-term and long-term loans payable consisted of bank borrowings under loan agreements. The following table 
summarizes the short-term and long-term loans payable as of February 28, 2017 and August 31, 2016.

Thousands of yen
As of 

 February 28, 2017 August 31, 2016
0.22923% unsecured short-term loans ¥               –  ¥  3,690,000
0.15407% unsecured short-term loans 1,690,000 –

Total short-term loans payable 1,690,000 3,690,000

0.28030% unsecured long-term loans due 2019 3,540,000 7,540,000
0.42000% unsecured long-term loans due 2021 4,620,000 4,620,000
0.41323% unsecured long-term loans due 2021 (*) 6,120,000 6,120,000
0.68000% unsecured long-term loans due 2023 5,890,000 5,890,000
0.67680% unsecured long-term loans due 2023 (*) 9,220,000 9,220,000
0.79000% unsecured long-term loans due 2024 2,870,000 2,870,000
0.76155% unsecured long-term loans due 2024 (*) 6,190,000 6,190,000
0.89000% unsecured long-term loans due 2025 4,160,000 4,160,000
0.88680% unsecured long-term loans due 2025 (*) 4,910,000 4,910,000
0.98000% unsecured long-term loans due 2026 1,510,000 1,510,000
0.93127% unsecured long-term loans due 2026 (*) 2,250,000 2,250,000

Total long-term loans payable ¥51,280,000 ¥55,280,000

The stated interest rate is the weighted average interest rate during the period ended February 28, 2017. For certain 
loans (*) for which LLR uses interest rate swaps to hedge their interest rate risk exposure, the effective interest rate 
which includes the effect of the interest rate swap is stated.
The redemption schedule for long-term loans subsequent to February 28, 2017 is disclosed in Note 4, “Financial 
Instruments.”

12. Investment Corporation Bonds Payable
The investment corporation bonds payable would be redeemed on a lump-sum basis at their contractual maturity 
dates. The following table summarizes the investment corporation bonds payable as of February 28, 2017 and August 
31, 2016.

Thousands of yen
As of 

Issued date Maturity date Interest rate  February 28, 2017 August 31, 2016
1st unsecured bond February 15, 2017 February 15, 2022 0.260% ¥4,000,000 ¥                  –
2nd unsecured bond February 15, 2017 February 15, 2027 0.580% 2,000,000   –

Total ¥6,000,000 ¥                  –

13. Income Taxes
LLR is subject to Japanese corporate income taxes on its taxable income. The tax effect of temporary differences 
that give rise to a significant portion of the deferred tax assets and liabilities as of February 28, 2017 and August 31, 
2016 are as follows:

Thousands of yen
As of 

 February 28, 2017 August 31, 2016
Enterprise tax payable ¥0 ¥41
Total deferred tax assets 0 41
Net deferred tax assets ¥0 ¥41

Reconciliation of major items that caused differences between the statutory tax rate and effective tax rate with 
respect to pre-tax income reflected in the accompanying statements of income for the periods ended February 28, 
2017 and August 31, 2016 are as follows:

For the periods ended
 February 28, 2017 August 31, 2016

Statutory tax rate 31.74% 32.31%
Adjustments:

Deductible distributions (31.74%) (32.28%)
Other 0.02% 0.04%

Actual effective income tax rate 0.02% 0.07%

14. Per Unit Information
The following table summarizes per unit information for the fiscal periods ended February 28, 2017 and August 31, 2016.

Yen
For the periods ended 

 February 28, 2017 August 31, 2016
Net income per unit

Basic net income per unit ¥2,490 ¥3,779
(2,283)

Weighted average number of units 
outstanding 1,100,000 660,547

Yen
As of 

 February 28, 2017 August 31, 2016
Net assets per unit ¥99,001 ¥98,964

(Note)  Net income per unit is calculated by dividing net income by the average number of investment units for the 
period. Net income as a basis for calculating net income per unit is 2,739,607 thousand yen and 2,496,616 
thousand yen for the periods ended February 28, 2017 and August 31, 2016, respectively. Furthermore, net 
income per unit for the previous period calculated using the daily weighted average number of investment units 
with February 17, 2016, the date on which the fund actually began investing, as the starting date (1,093,462 
units) is shown in parentheses. The diluted net income per unit is not stated here as there are no diluted 
investment units. 
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15. Transactions with Related Parties
a) Transactions and Account Balances with the Parent Company and Major Unitholders

(For the period ended February 28, 2017)
 None

(For the period ended August 31, 2016)
 None

b) Transactions and Account Balances with Affiliates
(For the period ended February 28, 2017)

 None

(For the period ended August 31, 2016)
 None

c) Transactions and Account Balances with Companies under Common Control
(For the period ended February 28, 2017)

Relation

Classification

Name 
of the 

company Address

Stated Capital
(Thousands of 

yen) 
Type of 

Business

Percentage of 
voting rights 

owned

Common 
board 

member
Business 

relationship

Type of 
transaction

(Note 2)

Transaction 
amount

(Thousands of 
yen)

(Note 1) Account

Ending 
Balance

(Thousands of 
yen)

(Note 1)

Subsidiary of 
an affiliate

LaSalle 
REIT 

Advisors 
K.K.

Chiyoda-ku, 
Tokyo ¥164,500

Investment 
management 

business
–

Executive 
Director of 
LLR and 
President 
& CEO of 
the Asset 
Manager

Asset  
Manager

Payment of asset 
management fee

(Note 3)
¥633,517 Accounts 

payable ¥684,199

(Note 1)  The transaction amounts do not include the consumption tax whereas the tax is included in the ending 
balance.

(Note 2) The terms and conditions of these transactions were executed based on market practices.

(For the period ended August 31, 2016)
Relation

Classification

Name 
of the 

company Address

Stated Capital
(Thousands of 

yen) 
Type of 

Business

Percentage of 
voting rights 

owned

Common 
board 

member
Business 

relationship

Type of 
transaction

(Note 2)

Transaction 
amount

(Thousands 
of yen)
(Note 1) Account

Ending 
Balance

(Thousands of 
yen)

(Note 1)

Subsidiary of 
an affiliate

LaSalle 
REIT 

Advisors 
K.K.

Chiyoda-ku, 
Tokyo ¥164,500

Investment 
management 

business
–

Executive 
Director of 
LLR and 
President 
& CEO of 
the Asset 
Manager

Asset  
Manager

Payment of asset 
management fee

(Note 3)
¥2,214,937 Accounts 

payable ¥648,580

(Note 1)  The transaction amounts do not include the consumption tax whereas the tax is included in the ending 
balance.

(Note 2) The terms and conditions of these transactions were executed based on market practices.
(Note 3)  The Asset management fee above includes management fees of 1,614,400 thousand yen capitalized as 

part of acquisition costs of properties.

16. Segment Information
Segment Information
Segment information has been omitted as LLR has only one segment, which is real estate leasing business.

Related Information

(For the period ended  February 28, 2017)

a) Information by Products and Services
Information about products and services has been omitted because operating revenues from sales to external 
customers for one product and service category are in excess of 90% of the operating revenues on the statements 
of income.

b) Information by Geographic Region

 (i) Operating Revenues
Information about operating revenues has been omitted because operating revenues from sales to external 
customers in Japan are in excess of 90% of the operating revenues on the statements of income.

(ii)  Property and Equipment
  Information about property and equipment has been omitted because the amount of property and equipment 
located in Japan is in excess of 90% of the amount of property and equipment on the balance sheets.

c) Information by Major Customers
Information about major customers has been omitted because each net sale to a single external customer accounts 
for less than 10% of the operating revenues on the statements of income.

(For the period ended August 31, 2016)

a) Information by Products and Services
Information about products and services has been omitted because operating revenues from sales to external 
customers for one product and service category are in excess of 90% of the operating revenues on the statements 
of income.

b) Information by Geographic Region

 (i) Operating Revenues
Information about operating revenues has been omitted because operating revenues from sales to external 
customers in Japan are in excess of 90% of the operating revenues on the statements of income.

(ii)  Property and Equipment
  Information about property and equipment has been omitted because the amount of property and equipment 
located in Japan is in excess of 90% of the amount of property and equipment on the balance sheets.

c) Information by Major Customers
Information about major customers has been omitted because each net sale to a single external customer accounts 
for less than 10% of the operating revenues on the statements of income.
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17. Subsequent Events
a) Acquisition of Assets

LLR acquired the following assets on March 1, 2017. “Acquisition price” is the purchase price for each of the trust 
beneficiary interests as shown in the trust beneficiary interest purchase agreement of the Newly Acquired Assets 
(excluding consumption taxes, local consumption taxes, and various acquisition costs, and is rounded down to 
the nearest million yen).

Area Property number Property Location
Acquisition price 
(Millions of yen) Seller

Tokyo area Tokyo-9 LOGIPORT Kawagoe Kawagoe, Saitama ¥11,950 Logistics Feeder 1 GK

b) Borrowing of Funds 
For the properties listed above under “a. Acquisition of Assets,” LLR borrowed the following funds to cover the 
acquisition of the trust beneficiary interests, part of related expenses and prepayment of outstanding debt.

Category Lender
Borrowing 

amount 
(Millions of yen)

Interest rate 
(Note 5 )(Note 6)

Borrowing 
date

Borrowing 
method

Repayment 
date 

(Note 7)

Repayment 
method 
(Note 8)

Collateral

Long-
term

Syndicated facility consisting 
of Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi 
UFJ, Mizuho Bank, Ltd. and 
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking 
Corporation as arrangers 
(Note 1)

1,900

Rate equal to 
0.1625% over 
the reference 
rate (3-month 
Japanese yen 
TIBOR by Jap-
anese Bankers 
Association)

March 1, 
2017

Borrowing based 
on a separate 
loan agreement 
dated February 
27, 2017 with 
the lenders 
indicated on 
the left

September 3, 
2018

Bullet 
repayment  
at maturity

Unsecured and 
non-guaranteed

Syndicated facility consisting 
of Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi 
UFJ, Mizuho Bank, Ltd. and 
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking 
Corporation as arrangers 
(Note 1)

1,400

Rate equal to 
0.1875% over 
the reference 
rate (3-month 
Japanese yen 
TIBOR by Jap-
anese Bankers 
Association)

March 1, 
2017

Borrowing based 
on a separate 
loan agreement 
dated February 
27, 2017 with 
the lenders 
indicated on 
the left

September 2, 
2019

Bullet 
repayment  
at maturity

Unsecured and 
non-guaranteed

Syndicated facility consisting 
of Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi 
UFJ, Mizuho Bank, Ltd. and 
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking 
Corporation as arrangers 
(Note 2)

2,990
0.42945%
(fixed interest)

March 1, 
2017

Borrowing based 
on a separate 
loan agreement 
dated February 
27, 2017 with 
the lenders 
indicated on 
the left

March 1, 
2022

Bullet 
repayment  
at maturity

Unsecured and 
non-guaranteed

Syndicated facility consisting 
of Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi 
UFJ, Mizuho Bank, Ltd. and 
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking 
Corporation as arrangers 
(Note 3)

1,900

Rate equal to 
0.3325% over 
the reference 
rate (3-month 
Japanese yen 
TIBOR by Jap-
anese Bankers 
Association)

March 1, 
2017

Borrowing based 
on a separate 
loan agreement 
dated February 
27, 2017 with 
the lenders 
indicated on 
the left

September 1, 
2023

Bullet 
repayment  
at maturity

Unsecured and 
non-guaranteed

Syndicated facility consisting 
of Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi 
UFJ, Mizuho Bank, Ltd. and 
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking 
Corporation as arrangers 
(Note 4)

5,600

0.47128%
(Fixed interest 
rate)

March 1, 
2017

Borrowing based 
on a separate 
loan agreement 
dated February 
27, 2017 with 
the lenders 
indicated on 
the left

September 1, 
2023

Bullet 
repayment  
at maturity

Unsecured and 
non-guaranteed

(Note 1)  The syndicated facility includes Resona Bank, Ltd., The Bank of Fukuoka, Ltd. Shinsei Bank, Ltd., The 
77 Bank, Ltd., and The Nomura Trust and Banking Co., Ltd.

(Note 2)  The syndicated facility includes the Development Bank of Japan, Resona Bank, Ltd., The Bank of Fukuoka, 
Ltd. and The Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation.

(Note 3) The syndicated facility includes the Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation.
(Note 4)  The syndicated facility includes the Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Mizuho Bank, Ltd., and Sumitomo 

Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited.
(Note 5)  The interest rate does not include loan fees payable to lenders.
(Note 6)  The first interest payment date is the last day of May, 2017, and subsequent interest payment dates are 

the last day of every February, May, August and November thereafter, and the repayment date. As to 
floating interest rates, the base interest rate refers to the Japanese yen Tokyo Interbank Offered Rate 
(TIBOR) for three-month deposits announced by the JBA TIBOR Association (General Incorporated 
Association) two business days before the interest payment date for the immediately preceding interest 
calculation period. (However, for the first calculation period, the applicable date is the drawdown date) 
Please refer to the JBA TIBOR Association’s website (http://www.jbatibor.or.jp/english/) for changes in 
the JBA Japanese yen TIBOR. 

(Note 7)  The repayment date will be the immediately following business day in case such date would fall on a day 
that is not a business day and the immediate preceding business day in case such date would fall in the 
next calendar month.

(Note 8)  Partial or full principal repayment prior to the maturity date is permissible under certain conditions such 
as LLR providing prior written notice of its intention during the period between the borrowing date and 
the repayment date. 

52 53

LaSalle LOGIPORT REIT



Investor InformationIndependent Auditor’s Report 
Schedule of Annual IR-Related Events

Jan.

Feb.

Mar.

Apr.

May

Jun.

Jul.

Aug.

Sep.

Oct.

Nov.

Dec.Start of distribution payment for 
the period ending February

Delivery of asset management report 
for the fiscal period ending February

Start of distribution payment for 
the period ending August
Delivery of asset management report 
for the fiscal period ending August

Results announcement of the 
fiscal period ending August

Closing of the fiscal period 
ending February

Closing of the fiscal period 
ending August

Results announcement of the 
fiscal period ending February

Top Unitholders

Unitholder Type by Unit Quantity Share of Total Unitholder Ratio by Investor Type

Retail Investors
13.1%

Domestic Financials
52.2% 

Domestic Corporates
4.1%

Foreign Institutions
30.4%

Retail Investors
95.1%

Domestic Financials
0.8%  

Domestic Corporates
2.4%

Foreign Institutions
1.4% 

Unitholder Metrics
The following charts illustrate various metrics for measuring unitholders. 

Number of Units Ratio
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust Account) 225,809 20.52
Trust & Custody Services Bank, Ltd. (Securities Investment Trust Account) 104,597 9.50
The Master Trust Bank of Japan  (Trust) 97,315 8.84
The Nomura Trust Bank (Trust) 50,393 4.58
NSI CUSTOMER SECURED 30.7. OMNIBUS* 46,200 4.20
STATE STREET BANK AND TRUST COMPANY 505012 25,598 2.32
THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON SA/NV 10 20,903 1.90
NOMURA BANK (LUXEMBOURG) S.A. 19,950 1.81
SIX SIS LTD. 14,149 1.28
STATE STREET BANK AND TRUST COMPANY 505001 12,863 1.16

Totals 617,777 56.16

As of February 28, 2017

* A custodian of LLR’s investment units owned by Jones Lang LaSalle Co-Investment, Inc. (a subsidiary of JLL that owns 50% of the 
issued and outstanding shares of Jones Lang LaSalle Global Holdings B.V., a parent company of LaSalle Investment Management 
K.K., which is a parent company of the Asset Manager). All of the investment units indicated on the right (46,200 units) are practically 
owned by Jones Lang LaSalle Co-Investment, Inc.
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